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I5.

LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

Risk concentrations of credir risk

FEINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continuecd)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The
percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical focations is as follows:

2011 2010

Within 40km of Sydney CBD 1.85% 2.53%
New South Wales — Other 17.42% 26.30%
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 4.34%, 1.56%
Victoria — Other - 2.68%
Queensland — Other 65.83% 55.99%
Canberra — Other 1.56% 1.39%
Western Australia 8.18% 6.62%
Tasmania 0.82% 0.63%

100.00% 100.00%

The maximum credit risk exposure at year end in relation to morigage loan is the carrying value of
the assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

The Scheme has a concentration of credit risk relating to the derivative instruments as ali foreign
currency swaps are eatered info with the same counterparties.

Credit guality of mortgage loany

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Scheme using internal risk rating categories in
accordance with the investment mandate of the Scheme. The Scheme’s exposure in each calegory is
monitored on a daily basis. This review process aliows the Responsible Entity 10 assess the potential
loss as a result of risks and take corrective action.

As at 30 June 2011, the Scheme was mortgage in possession of security relating 1o loans in default of
$405.2 million (2010: $332.9 million) and had taken possession of assets offered as collateral security
valued at $415.2 million (2010: $401million)},

¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in refation to
investment activities or funding unitholder redemptions,

The nature of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that liguidity be managed
cautiously and aligned fo the redemptions policy outlined within the constitution of the Scheme. At
30 June 2011, the redemptions requested from unitholders bus not paid was $144,181,702 (2010;
$153,456,231). An additional 147,917,267 (2010: §154,839,212) of redemptions had been requesied
by unitholders of the feeder funds — refer to Note 6.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Netes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

is. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)
o) Liquidity risk (Continued)

During the 2009 year, the Responsible Entity closed the Scheme to new investors and suspended
withdrawals, with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder fund
payments for distributions and expenses. Feeder funds are other registered managed investment
schemes that have invested directly in the LM First Mortgage Income Fund. Redemptions ars

" generally to be paid within 365 days of the investment maturity term, however, redemptions have
been suspended, per the constitution, as the Responsibie Entity considers the suspension of
withdrawals to be in the best interest of the members of the Scheme.

As at 16 September 201 1, $143,683,209 of redemptions had been requested by unitholders but not vet
paid. Redemptions alse rank behind repayment of external financing facilities as detailed in Note

2(a).

The Responsible Entity employs risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able to meet
its obligations as above, The liguidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders requests
for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by
maintaining sufficient cash funds to satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.

In order to minimise liquidity risk, management assesses and monitors the fiquidity requirements of
both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at alf fimes the Scheme has
adequate cash and cash equivalents to cover fund obligations and that liguidity is managed within the
Scheme’s policies and [imits.

Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other payables, distributions payable, net assets
attributabie to unitholders, fair vaiue of foreign exchange contracts and the secured bank Joan, Trade
and other payables and distributions pavable have ne contractual maturities but are typically scttied

within 30 days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 menths of year end.

Net assets attributable to unitholders mature over the following periods:

Period from 30 June 2011 Value

Die and payable* 144,181,702
< 12 months ‘ 299,131,116
12-24 months 7,161,251
24-36 months 617,873
36-48 months - 678,545
>48 months .
Total 451,770,487
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2011

15 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

* This balance represents redemptions requested but not paid at 30 June 201 ] of $292,791,534 (2010:
155,401,717,

The secured bank joan is repavable by 30 June 2012, as detailed in Note 2(a} and 10. When drawn,
the loan is secured by the assets of the Scheme.

d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.
Market risk is managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minimised through ensuring
that all investment activities are undertaken in accordance with established mardate {imits and
investment strategies.

Taterest rate risk
interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect fiture cash flows
or the fair value of financial instrements. The Scheme has estabiished limits on investments in

interest bearing assets, which are monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme’s exposure (o inkerest rate risk and the effect weiphted average interest rate for classes of
financial assets and financial liabilities is set out below:
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity of the Scheme’s Statement of Comprehensive Income to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest
rates on the interest income for one year, based on the financial instruments held at 30 June 2011,

Accounting assumptions
The basis points sensitivity is based on the historical volatility of changes in interest rates.

201

Sensitivity of interest
income ($000°s)

Change in basis points

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Ei ial Instruments 50 50 2,700 2,700
tnancial instrume 160 100 5,401 5,401

2010

Change in basis points

Sensitivity of interest
income ($000°s)

Increase Decreqyse Increase Decrease
Fi al i 50 30 2,825 2,825
inancial instruments 100 (00 5.650 5,650

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate duc

1o changes in foreign exchange rates. The Scheme enters into foreign exchange contracts principally fo
hedge the foreign exchange risk implicit in the value of the investor funds denominated in foreign
currencies and to secure a particular exchange rate for a planned purchase or sale of investinents. The term
of the contracts rarely exceeds twelve months.

The fair vaiue of forward exchange contracts held at 3¢ June 2011 was $33,691 (2010: 81 7,451).

The nominal Australian dollar value of forward exchange contracts held at 3¢ June 2011 was $10,570,860
(2010: $10,266,314).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant exposure at 30 June 201§ on
its monetary assets and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the currency rate against the Australian Dollar on the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, with all other variables held constant.

Foreign curresncy
Investments in the fund are hedged in the relevant currency against Austratian doliar currency movements,
The fund manages foreign currency risk through the use of forward foreign exchange contracts (FFEC).
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R
= LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
B Netes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
L 15. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
]
The FFECs are facilitated by several banking firms. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and
. investors. The below tabie is only applicable if the FFEC facilitator is unable to meet its obligation and the
5 fund therefore seeks an alternative party to transact the FFEC,
[} Accounting Assumptions- Variability of foreign currency
The sensitivity is based on the volatifity of changes in global currency.
[
[ ] 2014
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets attributable
] exposure by currency % to unitholders
(000’s) (000°s)
n Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
CAD 5 14] 1) 0 ]
. EUR 1,376 10 10 125 153
[ GBP 1,889 10 10 172 210
HKD 903 10 19 90 90
[ 1Py - 10 10 - -
NZD , 4,652 HO 0 443 493
= SGD 196 10 10 18 2
THB 29 10 10 3 3
R TRY 146 {4 10 13 16
B UsD 1,375 {4] H) 127 50
" — T .
Currency AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in | Effect on net assets atiributable
E exposure by currency % to unithoiders
{000°s) {000°s)
] Increqse Decrease Increase Decrease
CAD t4 10 1 1 2
L EUR 1,432 10 10 130 159
» GRBP 2,139 10 10 [94 238
HK.D 8§ 10 10 1 !
s JPY {40 i0 i0 13 16
NZD 4,720 10 10 445 505
5 SGD 212 10 10 19 24
THB 33 io 10 3 4
= TRY 187 10 10 7 31
E UsD 1,38] 10 10 126 [53
= Eqaity Risk
E The Scheme is not subject to equity risk at 30 June 2011,
-
s
]
| 48
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2011

16. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position are carried af
their fair value as disclosed by class of financial instruments or at amounts that appreximate their fair
values,

Refer to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adopted in determining fair values for investments.
Disclosed below is the fair vaiue of the Scheme’s financial instruments,

The foilowing methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and
liabilities.

Fair value: The Scheme uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The
methods comprise:

Level 1 — the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices);

Leve} 3 — the fair value is estimated using inputs for the zsset or tiability that are not based on observable
market data.

Fair Value Carrying
Amount

pAi) § Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3 Total
h g 5 5 $

Finzncial Assels
Forward currency - 33,691 - 33,691 33,691
contracts
‘Total Financial Assets - 13,691 - 33,69¢ 33,691
Financial Liabilities
Forward currency - - - - .
contracts
Total Financial - - - . -
Liabilities

Fair Value Carrying
Amoaunt

2010

Eevel 1
$

Level 2
$

Level 3
$

Totul
by

3

Financial Assets

Forward currency
contracts

17,451

17,451

t7,451

Total Financisl Assets

17,451

17,451

17,451

Finaacial Liabilities

Forward currency
contracts

Toial Financial
Liabilities

The fair values of currency exchange contracts (forwards and swaps) are caleulated by reference to current

exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity and risk profiles.
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Junc 2811

i7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
There are no material contingent assets and liabilities or commitments as at 30 fune 2011
I8. EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF BALANCE DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the
Scheme disclosed in the balance sheet as at 30 June 2011 or on the results and cash flows of the Scheme for
ihe year ended on that date, other than those detailed below:

(v) Status of distribations payable

As at 36 June 2011, $6,289,306 of distributions payable related to distributions that were required to be paid
under the Scheme’s Canstitution prior to 30 June 2011. In addition, $5,384,075 of distributions payable as
at 16 September 2011 that were required to be pakd under the Scheme’s Constitution remain payable. These
distributions relate to the months of March 2010 to December 2010. Since yearend, $1,039,826 in
distributions payable has been paid relating distributions accrued for the month of February and March
2010 (see to Note 3).
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resofution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, | state that:

a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages 8 to 50 are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporation Regulations 2001, and

(i) piving a triee and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2011, and of its
performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial
year ended on that date.

(i) the financial statements and notes to the financial statements are prepared in compliance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards as made by the international Accounting

Standards Board.

b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable; and

¢) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution.

On behalf of the Boarg

LM Investment Management Limited,

L)

Lisa Darcy

Director
Gold Coast
16 September 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the unitholders of LM First Mortgage
Income Fund '

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial repart of LM First Mortgage Income Fund ('the Scheme?,
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 .June 2011, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net asseis attributabie to unithoiders and statement of
cash flows for the year ended on that date, 2 summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the directors' declaration.

Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the responsible entity of the Scheme are responsible for the preparation of the financial
report and have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 2 to the financial report is
appropriate to meet the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs

af the unithoiders.

The directors’ responsibility also inciudes such internal cantrots as the directors determine are neéessary
to enable the preparation of a financiai report that is free from material misstatement, whather due to

fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we compty
with relevant ethical reqguirements refating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free irom material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures {o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an epinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonablenass of
accounting estimates made by the directers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

report.

We believe that ihe audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for
our audit opinion.

independence

In conducting our audit we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001, We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Deciaration, a
copy of which is included in the directors’ report,

Liabitity imited by a scheme approvad
under Professional Standards Legislation
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Opinion
in our opinion:

8. the financial report of LM First Mortgage Income Fund Is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, inciuding:

i giving a true and {air view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2011 and of its
performance for the vear ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporatians Regulations 2001,
and

b. the financial report also complies with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 2.

Eonsic :’L\“k:*«mr:3

Ernst & Young

T s e

Paula McLuskie
Partner

Brisbhane

16 September 2011
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L FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FURNT

Directors’ Report

CIRECTORS REPORT
The directors of LM investiment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the LW First Mortgage Income Fund,
present their report of the Ll First Mortgage Incore Fund {“the Schemea”) for the year ended 30 Juns 2012, The

directors” report is not patt of tha finandal report.
DIRECTORS

The following persons hald office as directors of LM investinent Management Lirsitad, during the vear o singe the end

of the yaar and up to the date of this report:

Mame

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1897

Ms Lisa Mares Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003 ~ Resigned 21 June 2012
tvir Ezhard van der Hoven Appointed 22 june 2006

fls Francene iaree Muider Appuinted 30 Seplember 2006

Appointed 27 November 2007 - Resigned 12 August 2012
Appointad 18 September 2008 — Resigned 13 July 2012
Appointed 14 March 2012 ~ Resigned 17 August 2017
Appointed 13 by 2012

wir dohn O'5ulllvan
wMr Stinon Tickner
M Grant Fischer

s Katherine Phillips

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Schema continued the principal activity of investing unitholders’ funds in existing registered morigages
and cash investments in Ausiralia in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy

of the scheme as outlined In the current product disclosure document.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Schame's activities during the year.
The Scheme did not have any employees during the vear,

BOHEME INFORMATION
The Scheme s an Australian registered scheme and was constituted on 13 Aprlt 1599, The Responsibile Entity of L
Firsi Morigage Income Fund is LM Invesiment Management Limited ["LM"}, which has been the Responsible Ently

since registration of the Schame.

The registered office and principal piace of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9 Beach

Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensfand.
REYVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Rasilts

Since the closure of the fund in 2009, the Responsilie Entity's prime focus has heen to see the repeyment of all toans
to create the cosh flow reguired to effect the progressive repayment of the fund's Tine of eredit facility and fo realise
distribution of capital for invastors. The Responsible Entity has followed this strategy, avolling & fire sale of assets and
managing ant maintalning assets for est vaive outcomes when ultimately sold.

The financial crisls and mariet factors saw the Tund dlose and at that time Livl's prime focus was to seek repaymeant of
thie fund's loan from is borrowers ai thelr respective maturlty dates, Due to genersl liquidity consiraints in the
market the majority of borrowers defaulted at maturity when unable fo repay the oan, and on behalf of the fund, Lv
toak possession of the colinteral over which the lean was secured 1o prolect investor interests.
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F IS

Hirectors” Heport

LM has managed an orderly assot sales process since tha fund's closure. When it closed, there were 55 foan assats,
Siirce that time 28 of foans have been repald through an ongoing asset sales process, Liv s driving the orderly sale of

the ramalning 27 number of loans,

The original credit facility balance was $19% milllon at tima of closure. The culrent Deutsche Bank cradit fasility
balance is now $29.4 million. Singe the fund closed, LM has managed a total credi facility reduction of $103.6 miflion.

The pature of all the properties in which the fund enforced Its tights T0 security was varied in tesms of secior type and
the loans provided a broadly diversified geographic exposure nerass tha Australian property miarket,

Since the fund closed, LM has completed slgnificant work on assets to bring them to a point of sale, ensuring value by:
attentding to general maintenance and prasentation of the properties for saje, completing works to enhance longer

chiaining relevant davelopment and or bullding approvals to increase property value and entering into

term value,
presalos marketing campaigns where benefit existed In com Fleling further staged development work on various

properties,

Since the fund's closure the Responsible Entity considerad different strategles to realise hast outcomes for invastors
,

Including that of offering investors the cholee of selling or holding thelr investment,

i this reporting perfod, the Responsible Entity has sought further feadback from Investors in this regard and has

announced that the fund will not re-open, The Responsible Entity is driving a continual orderly sell down of alf
remmaining assets 1o see the recommencement of ca pitai distributions to Investors as quickly as possible. All investors

will share pro-rata in capizal distributions as the sales PrOgreEss.

fri addition, the Responsible Entity has annovunced that a5 tha wark of bringlng the assats to the noint of sale is
completed, it will be returning to its historic fee levels, capping the management fee at 1.5% pa.

Approved investor bardship withdrawals will continue as the sales proveed,

iy assessing sales prices for assets in today's market, contemplating the sajes of all remaining assets, the directors
nave taken additional provisions resuiting in & unit value of 59 cants as at 16 Novembar 2012, We note that the
reariet value at the future point of asset sale will determine the unir vatue Liltimataly realised as investors recaive

progressive capltal distributions,

The change in net assefs attributable to the unitholders of the Schemea s presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Net foss attributable to unitholde
loss 0f 377,418,886).

Distributions to unitholders declared during the year totallad 517,024,389 (2011 514,285,925),

Tatal assets ander management were $343,975,757 as o1 30 June 20717 {2011 5454,724,799). Wvestor Funds under
management decreased during the vear by $93,206,695 {2011 decressed by $104,824,211). Funds undar
management invested by retated managed investment schemes in L FMIF increasad by 514,484,434 (2011,
ttecreased by S].3,222,593} {0 §224,867,439 {2011 SEZ‘LG,B?S,OGS}.

rs for the vear endod 20 june 2012 was 588,615,577 (2011
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LA FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUISD

Dfrectors’ Repart

The performance of the Scheme, as reprasentad by the results of its operations, was zs follows:

30 dune 2012 30 hne 2043
& %
Not operating incame/{ioss) before distributions [88,615,577) (77,418,896
Financing costs: Distributions to unitholders (17,024,388} {14,295,525)
{increasel / decrease in net assets atiributable to unitholders 105,638,966 91,714,521

LINITHOLDER FLINDS

There were 488,787,330 units on issue al 30 June 2012 {2011 A47€,355,743), During the year 18,871,927 of units were
Issued by the Scheme {2035 12,180,254} and 6,666,188 of units were withdrawn {2011: 24,218,532).

SCHEME ARSETS

AT 30 June 2012, the Scheme held assetsto 2 total value of 5348,975,757 (2011: $454,724,799). The basis for
valuation of assets is disclesed in Note 2 to the finandal statements.

FEES PAID TC AND INTEREST HELD BY THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSDOIATED COMPANIES

The following fees were patd 1o LM Investment Managemant Limited and its assocated compantes out of Scheme
property during the financlal year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the

Resporsible Entity:

2012 2081
5 &
e Management fees paid or payable directly to LM Administration Pty Li¢ 0,103,864 10,887,168
e Expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity and #5 associated eniities
which are retmbursad th accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s 25,483 794,164
Constitution, including administration and custodian faes
e Expepses Including administration expenses incurred by the Responsible 38,504 )

Entity and 1ts astaciated entities, which are hot reimbursed

Loan management fees paid io the Responsible Entity for loen
management and recefvership services provided hy the Respansible
Entity on bebalf of the Scheme in replacement of appointing external
roceivers, Thase fees are charged directly to the borrower to faciltate

I

4,817,414 5,381,516

fuiure possibie recovery,
The Responsible Entity will be relurning to iis low historic fee fevels, capping the managerment fee ot 1.5% pa, as of 1
MNovermnher 2012,
The interests in the Scheme held by the Responsible Entily and Hs associates as the end of the year are discloser in

Bote 10 to the finandal statements.

L
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Diractors’ Report:

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES I8 THE STATE O AFFAIRS
In the opinfon of the directors, there were ro significant changes in the state of affairs of the Sch eme that occurred
during the financiaf year nder raview that are not otherwise disclosed In thiz report.

SHINIFICANT EVENTS AFVER THE BALANCE DATE

Other than the matters disclosed in Note 18 of the financial report theve has baan no matter or circumstance that has
arlsen since the end of the financial year that has significa nily affected, or may affect, the Scheme’s operations in
fultire ifhancial years, the results of those operations of the Stheme's state of affalrs in future years,

LIKELY DEVELGPRENTS AMIY EXPECTED RESULTS

Turther Information on likely developments in the opuration of the Scheme and the enpected restlts of those
operations bas not been Included in this report bacause the Resporsible Entity belevas it would lkely resuli in
unreasonabie prejudice to the Scheme.

ENVIRODNMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subect to any particular or significant environmentat regulations under o law of
the Commanwaalth ora Stete or Tarritory. There have been no inown significant breachas of any other
environmental requirements applicable to the Scheme.

INDERNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF IMRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No rsurance premiums are pald for out of the assets of the Stheme In regards to insurante cover provided o either
the officers of LV Investment Management Limited or the auditors of the Scheme. Provided the officers of Livi
Investment Management Umited act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers remain

indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against iosses incurred while acting on behalf of the Scheme. The auditars
ofthe Schere are in no way indeminified out of the assats of the Scheme,

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

Acapy of the auditor’s independence dedoration os required inder section 307C of the Corporations Act 2007 [s set
ot on page 7,

signed in actordence with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Marnagemsnt Limitad.

Peter Drake
Director
Gold Coast

16 November 2012
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Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of L Investiment

w!“‘”!”i”i”“!w.“

4000 Australia
7O Briskane OLD 4001

Tel: +61 7 2011 2333
Fax 161 7 3011 3100
WRLEY.CmTEN

‘

oy

Managernent Limited as Responsible Entity for LM First Mortgage

fricome Fund

In relation to our audil of the financial report of L First Mortgage {ncome Fund for the financial vear
ended 30 June 2012, to the best of my knowlsdge and belied, there have been no contraventions of the

conduct,

E:_' T ...‘j"\.:h_ﬂ Eataly

Ernst & Young

[ R

T
Paula Mcluskie
Partpar

Brishane

16 November 2012

autlitor independence requirements of the Carporations Act 2001 or any applicabte code of professional

Lialftiy limitet by o schome s poroved
under Profession sl Slandards Legislotion
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LiVi FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Far the veay ended 36 june 2012

frome
Interest revenue — mortgage loans

Interast revenua — cash assals

Realised foraign exchange galn on Investor funds
Untealised foreign exchange gain on nvestor funds
Unrealised foraign exchange gain on foreign exchange
contracts

Fotal tevenue and other intorme

Expenses
Managemant fees

Finance costs

Custodian feas

Advisor commissions

Impairment losses on morigage loans

Unrealised foreign exchange [osses on investor fund
Unvealised foreign exchange [oss on foreign exchange

contracts
Reafised lngs on forelgh exchange contracts

Legal fees
Other expenses

Total expenses excluding distributions to unitholders

Met {fozs} before distributions to unitholders
Bistributions paid/payable to unitholders

Net (loss} efter distributions to unjtholders
Gther comprehensive income

Net foss after distributions to unfthoiders

Income tax experise

Changes in net assete atirfbuiable to unitholders after

Income tox expense

MNote

i1
4{a)

4(b)

30 hune 2012 3 June 2014
[ $
31,608,319 35,604,341
426,812 162,848
68,271 37,375
- 1,134,069
) 16,240
_ 32,088,402 36,954,873
8,103,864 10,097,188
8,583,798 14,072,789
77,804 112,324
2,165,236 2,080,475
09,144,122 84,873,703
167,384 -
145,432 -
36,203 1,338,500
523,012 407,260
757,014 481,530
126,715,979 114,373,769
(88,615,577} (77,418,898)
{17,024,388) { 14,295,925)
{105,63¢,966) (91,714,821)

(105,635,956)

(105,639,966)

{91,714,821)
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Livi FIRST MORTOASE INCOMWE FUND

STATEMENTY OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 hune 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Prepayments
Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

Loans and recetvablas
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Managament fes Pavable

Financial assets at fair value through profit orloss
Payahles )

Irerest bearing loans and borrowings

Distributions payable
Total liabilivies encluding net assets sttstbutable to unitholdars

MNET ASSETS
Regresented by

Pet assets attributable to unitholders
{catculated in accordance with IFRS)

10

20 June 2012 30 dune 2011
3 $

5,123,428 18,475,447
1,278,828 1,753,449
- 8,656,804
- 33,691
334 573,501 425,805,318
343,976,757 454,724,785
2,470,000 -
128,182 -
7,880,524 3,702,723
39,610,078 67,399,788
4,806,035 6,434,965
54,986,120 72,537,476
. 2BHDEDE2ZR 382,187,323
288,980,628 382,187,323
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HVEFIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUNR

STATERENT OF CHANGES IN NET f5s

ETS ATIRIBUTARLE TO UMITHOLDERE

For the year ended 20 June 2013

TOTAL

Onening balance

Units issued during the yegar

Units redeemed during the vear

Units issuerd on feinvestment of disyi butions
Changes in nel assetg attributable to unhitholdars

Fereign exchange {gain}/loss on investor funds

Closing Balance

203z it
5 2

382,187,322 487,014,534
3,012,163 21,540
6,666,158) {24,184,537)
15,959,774 12,098,705
{105,639,968) (91,714,821)
137,532 (1,104,712




LivE FIRST MIORTEAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLEVWS

Forthe yvear ended 20 June 2022

Cash flows from eperating activities
Interest and distributions racelved
Wanagement fees paid

Other operating axpenses

Other incoms received

GST and withhelding tax {pald)/racelvad
Finance costs paid

et cash inflow/f{outfiow)] from operating activitias

Tash Tlows from investing aclivities
Payments for seeurad mortgage loans
Recelpts from settied morigage loans

Met zash inflow/f{ouiflow} fram invasting activities

Cash flows frorm financing aotivittes

Repayment of horrowings

Proceeds from facility

Repayment of facilily

Cash pald on realisation of forelgn exchange contracts
Receipts frem the issie of units

Distributions paid

Payment for redemption of units

et cosh Inflow/{outflow] frem financing activitias
Net increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the vear

Cash and cash cyuivalenis at the end of the vear

30 Sune 2032

30 June 2011

Mote 3 s

A04,855 5,006,959
(5,180,443) -
{754,450} {614,803
(8,343,798) (15,144,305)

= S
1303 {13,678,736) (10,752,049)
(16,924,379} (15,867,477)
A8,872,765 62,313,149
24,898,386 46,415,677
- (81,014,217)
- £9,100,000
{22,78%,710} (26,700,212}
{68,271) -
2,312,382 70,000
(2,424,725) -
{3,600,345} (620,461}
(26,571,668} (19,164,800}
{10,352,019) 16,458,738
18,475,447 1,976,708
12{a} 8,123,428 18,475,447
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LIV FIRST MIORTGAGE INCOME #UND

NOTES TO THE FINANDIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE VEAR ENDED B JUNE 20612

i CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tor the year ended 30 June 20172 was

The financial report of LV First Morigage Income Fund {"the Schema”)
Responsible Entity on 16 November

authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors of the
2032,

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme, constituted or 13 Aptil 1889, The Schame will be terminated on
13 Apedi 2080 uniess terminated earlier In accordance with the proviston of tfie Scheme Constitution (as
amanded),

is incorporated and domiclled in

LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Scheme,
adise,

Australfa. The registerad office of the Responsible Entity Is lorated at Level 4, & Beach Road, Surfers Par

Cusenislang,

The nature of the aperations and princips! activities of the Scheme are described in the Directors’ Report.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The prindipal accounting policies applied in the rreparation of these financial statements are set out below, These
polictas have been consistently applied to all periods presenied, unless otherwise stated in the f ollowing text.

al  Basis of accounting

This financial report is & general purpose financial repoit that has been prepared In aceordance with the Schense
Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accownting Standards and other
gutholtative pronouncements of the Australian Actounting Standards Board, The financial report has also been
prepered on a historical cost basis, except for financlal assets and financial lahilities held at fair value through

profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value.

The Statement of Financia] Position is presented on 3 Hguidity basts. Assats and llabilities are presented in

decreasing order of fiquidity and does not distinguish betwean current and non-current ftems, Al balances are
expected to be recovered or setthed Within twelve months, except for loans and recefvables and net assets
atiributable 1o unitholders, The amount expacted o be recovered or settled within twelve months in relation to

the balances cannot be reliably determined.
The financial repert Is preserted in Austratian Doliars (3),

Statemant of Compliance

Thefinancial statements have heen prepered in accordance with the fustratian Acceunting Standards as lssusd by
the Austraiian Accounting Standards Board and Iniernational Financlal Reporting Standards as issua by the

international Accounting Standards Board,

12
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L PIRST MORTGASE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Financizl Statements for the year ended 30 June 20412
# BASYE OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
&) Basis of aeccounting (Continued}
Status of Invastmens in Tund

Dusing the 2009 vear, the Responsible Entity closad the Scheme 1o new investors and suspended withdrawats,
with the exception of those approvad under hardshiy grovisions and feader fund payments for distributions and
expenses. Feuder funds are other reglstered managed investment schemes that have nvested divectly in the L
First Morlgage income Fund. Redemplions are penerally tu be paid within 365 days of the investment maturily
term, however, redemptions have been suspended, per the constitution, as the Responsible Entily considers the
suspension of withdrawals to lze in the best interest of the members of the Scheme.

Since the closure of the Scheme, LM has managed an orderly assat sales process. When it closed, there wera 55
loan assets. Since that time 28 of loans have beer repaid through an ongeing asset sales process, LV s driving

the arderly sale of the remaining 27 number of leans,

The nature of all the properties the fuhd took controf of the securlty was varied in terms of sector type and the
ioans provided a broadly diversified geographic exposure acrozs the Austratian properiy market,

in this reporting period, the Responsible Ertity has sought fusther feedback from investors in this regard and has
annovnced that the find willinot re-open; Bl investors will share pro-rata ity capiial distibutions s The sales

progress,

Approvettinvesinr hordship withdrawals will continus ssthe sales procast,

wining Concern

The financial statements have been vrepared on the basis the Scheme isa going concern. The Rasponsible Entity
entered into a facliity with its external financler on hehalf of the Scheme that provided a Facility of $90 mifion for
two years with an option, that was exercised, to extend the facility for an additional vesr up to 30 June 2013, the
ioan balance was $32.6 million as &t 30 June 2012 (30 June 2011: 462.4million).

The facility agreemeni requires the Scheme to make minkmum repayments in priafiy to any redemptions, except
for hardship provisions and feader fund payments for Invesior distributions and fund epenses, Inaddition,
where the Scheme realises assets or recsives cash in settlement of secured loans i rust repay to the sxternal
inancler an agreed amount that varies based on each secured Iban,

As aresuit of disruptions feliowing the glabal financial orlsis, there is significant volatility in the financial sand
property markets which may impact the timing of itere cash flows In relation to the Scheme’s realization of
assels or receipt of cash in settlement of secured assets that is reculred to repay this fadiity and the abliity of the
Scheme to reaiise lis loans and receivables at the amounts stated in the accounts. in the svent that funding
beyond 30 fune 2015 is unable to be ohtained from financicrs, or cash vecelpls fram asset sales are defayed
and/or less than currently envisaged and the Scheme s unable te continue to comply with repayment obligations,

the Schere may not be able fo continue as 5 poing concern,

This uncertainty may impact the ability of the Schema to realise thase foans and recaivables at the amounts stated
in the accounts. As desortbed In Note 2{c), significant judgement has heen applied in determining the carrving

vatue of loans and recelvabls amoubis,

[
113
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LT FIRET MICRTCAGE INCOME BUND

lotes ia the Finands! Statements for the yeay ended 30 June 2052

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contined)

a}  Basis of accounting [Continuad]

able to meet its obligations under the rgpayment plan through

The directors helieve the Scheme will be
ith alternative financing providers, the

repayment of existing foans including the refinancing of existing loans w
repayment of loans from refated entities, or the continued support from the external financier.

hat based on progress {0 date In meeting the repayment obligations and the stetus of

The directars expect t
Himding or redraw on ;

negotiations with potential financiers, the Scheme witi be in a position to secure additionn

the amended facllity to complate developmant projects vatued on an “on completion basis”,
B

options for o managed redemption plan restriciure for those investors

The Responsible Entity is atso considering
et they protect those investors who wisii to n

with a redemptlon request lodged, The directors must #lso ensure t
remain invested in the Scheme.

A5 @ result of the above, the diveciors believe that the Scheme will ba able access funding, and be able to realise

its fvans and receivables In the normal eourse of business as a going concern 21 the amounis stated, No
adfustments have been made relating to the recoversbility and classification of recorded assef amounts and the
amounts and ciassification of Habllities that might he necessary should the Scheme not continte as g going

conger
b} New accounting standards and interpratations

Australian Aceounting Standards and Interpretations that hava racertly been issued or amended but are notyet
effective have not been adopted by the Scheme for e annual reporting period ended 30 june 2012, The impact
of these standards and interprelations has been assessed and to the extent applicable to the Scheme are
discussed below. Standards and Interpratations that are not expected to have a material impact op the Schame

have not bean indudead.
ARSD 8 Finonciol instruments and refated amendmeny SASE 280911

AASE 9 applies to annual reperting nericds beginning o or after 4 Jaruary 2012 and will therefore apply to the
Schaeme from 1 july 2013, The Scheme does not Intend to carly adopt AASE & as permitted by the standard, and ;

the actual impact on initial appiication will depend on certain elections s disciosed below,

AASE 3 yequires all firanclal instruments o be measured at fair value unloss the criteria for amortisad cost are
met. The application of the standard s not expected io change the measuremient basis of any of tie Scheme’s i
current financial nstruments, however, AASE 9 allows the Sctheme o elect to present gaiins and losses oh equity ;
secutlties through other comprehensive income, which may impact the prasentation of these gains snd loases,

The impact of the standard may also change If the natura of the Scheme’s activitfes or investiments changes prior

to injtiat application, .
]

ARSB 1D Consofidated Financind Stutaments and related standards AASE 17, AASE 12

ANSE 10 establishes a new contral mode! that applies fo all entities, i replaces parts of AASE 127 Consolidated

and Seporate Finencia! Statements dealing with tha accounting for consolidated financial statements and AASH

interpretation 112 Consodidution — Speciof Purpose Entities. The standard is not applicable urtll 1 fanuary 2013,

butis avaliable for eariy adoniion. The Scheme does not lntend o early adopt AASE 10. Managemant does hot
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LA FIRST WIORTGAGSE INCORME FUND

Notes to the Financal Statements for the vear ended 30 Jung 2012
HASIS OF PREPAAATION AND ACCOUNTING POLIDIES {continued)

) New acceunting standards and interpretations [Continued)

expect the adoption of AASE 10 to lead to any change o the presentation of consolidated financial statements

hased on the Scheme’s current Invastment sirategy,
) sigaificant agcounting judgements, estimates and asswmptions

In the process of applying the Group’s accountng policies, management has mads judgemants and estimations
which have hat an impact on the amounts recopnised in the financial statemants. The ea mying amounts of
certain assets and irabllities are often determined based on estimates and assumptions of future events. The
key estimaetes end assumptions that have a significant tisk of causing & matarial adjustment 1o the carrying
amounts of certaln assets and lighkities within the next annual reporting period are:

e Aflowance for impuirment foss an foans ond recelrables

The Scheme determines whather loans are impaired on an onhgoing basis, indivldually nssessed
provisions are raised where there is objective evidence of impairment that is where the Scheme does
net expect to recelve all of the cash flows contractually due. nividually assessed provisions are made
against individual facilities. The provisions are aestabiished based prirasrily on estimates of the
realisable (fair) value of collateral taken ang are measured as the difference between a financal asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows {excluding future oredit losses
that have not been incurred), discounted ot the financial asset’s origing! effective interest rate, Short
term halances have not been discounted,

&, Falrvolue of finoncial instruments

Wihen the falr valus of financial assets and financial fiabillties recorded In the Statement of Financial
Position canhat be derived from active markets, they are determined using 4 variety of valuation
technigues that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these modsls are smker from
chservable markets where possible, but where this is not feasibie, a degree of judgment is reguired in

establishing fair values,

Tha judgments include considerations of liquidity and mode! inputs such as credit risk (hoth own and
counterparty’s), correlation and volatility. Changes in assumptions abous these factns could affect the
reprovied fair vatue of financial mstruments. The models are calibrated regularty and tested for valldity
using prices from any obiservable current market transactions in the same insirument twithout
modification or repackaging) or based on any available ohservahle market data,

<} Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivailents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highiy figuid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts, For the purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafis, ;
|

@} Distrikution come

bistribution come is recognised when the Schame’s right to receive the lncome is established.

15
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L FIRST MORTGAGE INCOIME FUND
Notes to the Financiel Statements for the vear ended 20 June 2012

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued}

e

£) Interest income
i
. N |
hod, which is the rate

Interest income is recognised as the intarest acerues using the effective interest rate mat
strument to the

that exactly discounts estimated future cash recelpts through the expected fife of the fnancial in
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

g Default management feas

Income from default menagement feas Is recogrilsed in Hne with the exectted agreement with the borrower when

an event of default occors,
fh} Lhanges in the falr valus of investiments

Gains or losses on investments held for trading ave calculated as the difference betwean the fair value ay sate, or

atyear end, and the falr vahue at the previoss valuation point. This Incjudes both realised and unrealised gains and :
b B !
1

fosses.

i Fees, comintlssions and other expensas

Except where included in the effective interest caleulaiion {for financial instruments carried at amortised cost),

fees and camimissions are recognised on an acorual basks, Audit and compliance fees are incuded with ‘other

expenses’ and are recorded on an accrual basis,

I Finance costs

Interast on hormowings is recognised in the statement of camprehensive income in the period to which it relstes.
Issue costs assoclated with borrowings ara capitalised and amortised over the term of the barrowing to which

they relate using the effective interest method;

Kk} Financial Instruments

Firancial instruments in the scope of ARSE $89 Fingnciod Instruments; Revagnition ond Meosurement are tlassified as
efther financial assets and finanicia) liabllities at falr value through profit ot luss, loans and receivaliles, held-o-
matutity invesiments, available-for-sale investments or other financial Habliities as appropriate, When financial
assety e recopnised inilially, they are measured at falr valus, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or less, directly attribitable transactions costs, The Scherme determines the classiication of s

financtal assets at inltfa! recognition.

Al regular way purchases and sales of financial asscts are recognised on the trade data i.e. the date that the Scheme
cominils 1o purchase the asset. Regular way purchasesor sales are purchases of sales of financial assets under
contracts that require defivery of the assets within the perlod established generally by regulation or convention In

the marketplace,

i} Folrvelfue of finemeial ussets and fablfities through profit and foss

Financtal assets held for trading inciuded forward exchange contracts. These aszets are acquired principaily for
the purpese of mitigating the risk of movements in'the value of non-Australian Dollar Investor funts and
facililating forecasting of future cash flows. During the period, afi derivatives are classified as hefd for trading.
Derlvative financial instruments entered into by the Scheme do nat meat the hedge accounting oriterta o¢
defined by AASBI3D, Consequently, hedge accounting Is not applied by the Scheme in the 2012 financial year,

16
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LRI FHIST MORTGAGE INCOME FURD
Notes to the Finenddal Statements for the vear erdad 30 June 2012
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {Continusd)

Financlal Instruments (Continued)

i} Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financlal assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted In an active market, Loans and recelvables are itlally measured at falr value including transaction
costs directly atiributable to the finandsl asset. After initial recognition, loans and recelvables are carried at
amoriisad cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit ar loss when the
foans and receivabies are darecognised or Impaired, as weli as through the amortisation Drocess.

il Loans and receiveables (Continued)

Loans and recelvables are assessed for impairment gt each reporting petict. Anallowance is made for
credit losses when there is ohjective avidence that the Scheme will nol be able io coliect the ioans end
recelvables. Impairment losses are wiitten off when identified. Lossos expected as a result of futire
events are not recognised, I a provision for impairment has hoen recognised in relation 1o a loan, wilte
ofis for had debts are made against the provision, If no provisien forimpairment has previcusly been
recognised, write offs for bad debts are recognised as an evpeanse in the statement of co mirehansive

income,

The amount providad for impalrment of foans is determined by management of the Scthems and approved by
the Board of Directors, A provision is made of loans in arrears where the coltectabllity of the debis is
consicered doubtful by estimation of expected losses in relation to loan portfelios where speciic identification

s impracticable,

The components of impaired assets are as follows:
“Loans in srrears” are toans and advasces for which there Is reasonable doubs that tha Scheme will be ahie tg

collect all amounts of principsl and inkerest in actordance with the terms of the agreermand,

“Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets acglired in full or partial settiement of a
loan o similar facility through the enforcemment of security ATTENEEMETTS,

Where possible, the Scheme seeks to restructure loans to have loans fully performing, however the fand
will take enforce its rights to security where necessary. The ren egotiation may volve extending payment
terms and arrangement of pew [oan conditions, Onee the terms have been renegotigted any impalrment is
measured the same way as performing loens. The rensgotiated loans continse 1o be assessed indlvidually

and collectively for impalrment.

“Restructured loans” arise when the borrower is granted s concession duato contin uing difficulties in
meeting the original terms and new terms are not comparahle 1o the otiginal terms. These loans are removed
from ‘restructure loans' after a period of 12 months of performance apainst toan revised terms and contlitions.
Loans with revised ierms are included in ‘loans in arreass’ whan impalrment provisions are requirad,

When the Responsible Entity determines interest s not recoverable on certain fmpaired loans, the interest is
suspended and not brought inte income. Should the Resnonsible Entity’s analysis of the coliectnbility
subsequently change the interest witl be brought irto income at the tive it is determinad to be collactible,
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Liv] FIRET PMORTGAGE INCOME EUIND
Hotes to the Financis! Statements for the year ended 30 June 2002
2. SUMIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continuad}
1 Advisor Cominissions

Advlsor cominissions rmay be paid to the unitholders’ investment advisors and are calculated 25 @ percentage of
funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid mointhly in arrears 2nd are brought to account on an
accrual basls. The Stheme ceases to pay advisor commissions when the related unlits are redeemed,

yit} Payables

Payables are carriad at amortised cost and represent fabilities for goods and services provided to the Scheme
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpald and arise when the Scheme becomes obliged 10 meke future

payments in respect of the purchases of these goods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors os at the reporting date is recognised separately on the statemars of
financial position as unitholders are presently entitled to the distributable income as at 30 june 2012 under fhe

Scherme's Constitulion,
nj Increase/decraase in net assets attributable to unitholders

Non-distributabie income is iransfarred directly to net assets atiributable to unithalders and may consist of
unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, accrued income not yet assessable, expenses accrued for
which are not yet daductible, net caplial losses and tox free or tay deferred income. Net capital gains on the
realisation of any Investments {including anv adiustments for tax deferred income previously teken directly to net
assets attributable to unitholders} and sccrued income hot yat assassable will be included i the determination of
distributable incoma in the same vesr In which it becomes assessabie for tax. Excess and untfistributed income is

also transferred directly to net assets attributable to unitholders.

v} Distributions

In accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution, the Scheme fuily distributes its distributable income to unitholders,
Pistributions are payable monthly. Such distributions are determined by reference 1o the net taxebie income of
the Stheme. Distributable fncome Includas capital galns arfsing from the disposal of investments. Unrealised gains
and losses on vestments that are recognised as income are {fransferred fo net assets attributabie to unitholders
and are not sssessable and distributable unti realised, Capital losses are not distributed to unitholdars but are

retained to be offsat against any realised capltal gains.

) Goods and services tax {E5T)

The GST incurred on the costs of varlous services provided to the Responsthle Entity by third parties such as atdit
fees, custodial services and fnvestment management fees have heen passed onto the Scheme. The Echeme
quaiifies for Reduced nput Tax Credits (RITCS) at a rate of 75%.

Hence vestment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the staternent of
camprehensiva income net of the amount of G5T recoverabla from the Australisn Taxation Office {ATO). Accounts
payable are inchusive of GST. The net amount of G3T recoverabla from the ATO s included In recelvable in the

statement of flnancial position. Cash flows refating 1o GET are Included in the Statament of Cash Flows on a gross

hasis,

The GST component of cash fiows arising from Investing and finansing activities recoverable or payable to the ATO

is classified a5 an operaling cash flow,
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LRI FIRET MIORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financdal Statements for the year ended 39 fune 2013

2 SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

) &pplications and redemptions

Applications receivad for units In the Scheme are recorded when umits are issued in the Scheme. Redemptions

framithe Schame are recarded when the cancellation of units redeemead eceurs. Unit redemption prices are
¥ of unfts on issue.

determined by reference of the net assots of the Scheme divided by the numbe

Applications veceived in forelan cirrency denominations are initaliy recorded in the functional currency by
applying the exchange rates rufing at the date of the ransaction. Forgign currency denominated unithelder funds
are translated into the Schemes functional currency ot balance date, using the spot rate prevailing at that date,
Gains and losses arising from forelgn exchange translation are recorded in the Statement of Compirehensive

Income in the period in which they arlse.
r) Taxation
Untder eurrent tegistation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distribirtable income afthe

Scheme s fully distributed elther by way of cash or rejrvestment {i.e. unitholders are presently antitled to the

income of the Schema),

The price of & unit is based upon market values of underlying assets and thus may inciude a share of ynrealised
capltal gains, Should such a gain be reafised, that portion of the gain that is sublect to capital gains tax will be
distributed so that the Schame is not subject to capital galns tax. Realised capital losses are not distributed to
unitholders bot are retained in the Scheme to be offset against any realised capital gains. If realised capftat gains
exceed realised capits! logses, the excess is distribueed to unitholders,

s} Interest-bearing laans and horrowings

talr value of the consideration recelved et of
aans and borrowings are
culated by

Al loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being tha
Issue costs assoclated with the borrowing. After initlal recognition, nterest-hearing |
subsaguantly messured at arortised cost using the offective intarest method. Amortised cost is caf
taking into aceount any fssue costs, ahd any discount or premium on settemant.

4] Caplital mansgement

ders as capital, not withstanding
210
redempiions

The Responsfble Entlty manages the Scheme’s net assets attributable to wnithal
net assets attributabie to unitholdars is classified as a Hability. The amount of netl assets attributab)
unitholders car change significantly on a dally basis as the Scheme is sy biect to daily applications and
at the discretion of unitholders,

The Responsilie Entity monftors the level of daily applications and redempiions relative to the Houid asgets in the

Scheme,

The Scheme is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

) Derivative {fnancis! Instraments
The Stheme uses derivative financdial instruments such us farward trency contracts to hedgs its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations, Derivalives are racogrised 2t fair velue on the date on which a devivative
contract is entered inte and sre subsequently re-measured at thelr fair value, All derivatives are carried as assats

when fair value is positive and as liabHitles when faly value Is niegative.
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LV EIRET MIORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Motes to the Financlal Statements for the year anded 30 June 2602
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coniinued)
u} Barivative financial instruments [Continuad)

Any gains of losses arising from changes in the fair value of detlvatives, except for those that quallfy as cash flow
hedges, are teken directly to nat proflt o loss for the year.

The fair value of forward eurrency contracts is coloulated by reference o valuations provided by the fnancial
Institutions with which the forward exthange contracts are heid.

v) Fareign currency translailens

Tha Scheme's transactions In forelgn currendies comprise applications and withdrawals of foreign currency
unitholder funds and payment of distributions. Transactions in foreigh currencies are initially recorded in the
functicnal currency by applying the exchenge rates ryling at the date of the transaction. Mionetary assats apd
iabifity denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated af the rate of axchange prevailing at the balance shest
date, and exchange rate gats and losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive iIntome,

W) Determination of £air Value

Falr vailue Is the amount for which an asset couid be exchanged, ora fability settled, betwaan knowledgenble,
willing parties In an armv’s iength transaction,

The falr vatue Tor financial instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on thelr quoted
price or binding dealer price quotations {bid price for long posttions and agk price for short positions), without any
deduction for transactioh costs.

For all other financial Instruments not traded in an active market, the falr value is determined by using
appropriate valuation teshninues. Valustion technigues include: using recent anw’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrurment that is substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis and option prichng models making as much use of avajlahle and supporiable market dats &5 possible,

Refer to Note 15 to the financial statements for the methods and assumptfons applied In determining falr value
for each class of financial Instrument.
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LR FIRST MORTGAGE INCOMIE FUND

Motes to the Financial Btatements for the vear ended 80 June 2012

3 HNCOME AND DISTRIBUTHEIMNG TO UNITHOLDERS

a)  Distributions to unitholdsrs

2012 2031

s §
Digtributions paid/reinvested 12,218,354 7,860,960
Mstributions payable 4,806,035 6,434,965

17,024,389 14,295,925

BY Bistributions paid and payable

Clars A - 5,204,007
Class B 16,904,213 8,836,041
Clags C 126,178 155,877

17,024,388 14,795,925

Ag at 30 June 2012, $5,572,054 (2011: 56,288,306} of distributions payable related to distribtitions that were
requested to be paid under the Scheme's Constitution prior to 30 June 2012, Distributlons have been suspended

from 1 January 2011, Subsequent to balance date, 51,039,826 of distributions have been pald relating to

February and March 2011,

Ag noted in Note &, the Scheme has three classes of unktholders. Distributions of 16,904,211 were declared to
Cizss B Unitholders, These distributions were declared to enable the feader funds to recognise distribution
Income to match expenses incurred, All fesder funds have reinvestad back into the Scheme during the period.

Compliarice with the Trust Deed and Corporations Act in relation to these distributions is & matter of logal

interpratation end the Responsible Entity believes i has on arguable position to support the dedaration of these

" distributions as being fair and reasanzble o all classes of enitholdars,

4, EXPENSES

2z 2011
5 5
a} Finarnee cosis
interest on bank loans 8,143,798 13,519,294
Facility feas 450,000 553,485
8,%5:3,?93 14,072,789
b} Other expanses
Auditor's remuneaeation 555,905 415,880
Other expanses 157,100 65,650
TE7.014 481,530
5. AUTOR'S BEMUNERATION
2002 2011
5 4
Audit and review of the financia! reports 534,758 388,480
Other regulatory audit services 2E,647 27,400
558,505 415,830

‘These expenses have been included within ‘Other Expenses’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
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LiV] FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the yesr ended 20 June 2012
& CHANGES IN NEF ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO LUNITHOLDERS

Movements in the net assets attributable to unitholders during the vear were as follows:

Met assels attribuiable to unitholders

Class &

Opening balance

Units issved during the year

Linits redeemed during the year

Unlts Issued upon relnvestment of distributions
Clusing Balanca

Clase B

Dpening balance

Unlts issuad during tha year

Units redeermned during the year

Uinits issued upaon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balancs

Class £

Opaning balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeamed during the year

Units Issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Foreign exchange {gain}/loss on investor funds
Closing Balance

Cumtlative movement In changes net assets attributable to

unitholders
Total assets afiributable to unitholders

Ciazs A consists of unitholders who are entitfed to recelve the dedfared distribution rate. There arc a number of
subchasses attached (o class A, These consist of the following products with VAryIng terms:

o Flexi Account investment option;
¢ Fixed Term investmant apiion; and

a LM Savings Plan investnient option.

Class B consfsts of related Scheme unitholders, The distribution rate will he determinad by the Funds Committes
which is appolnted by the Responsible Entlty. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to waive the whole or park

20312 2014
$ $
254,832,731 253,713,032
- 11,548
(2,072,000 (547,888}
- 1,656,038
252,760,731 254,882,733
210,391,005 273,615,608
3,004,385 70,000
{4,497,306) (23,610,149}
15,964,955 10,317,456
224,862,439 210,391,005
9,635,388 10,641,784
{47,739} {26,895}
- 125,211
57,878 {1,104,712)
6,675,527 9,638,388
{198,31%,069} (82,671,801}

285,980,628 382,187,323

of the 1% traiiing commission and the whole ar part of 1ts management foe for this class of unit hinfders.
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LI FIRET MORTGAGE INCOWIE FLIMD

fletes to the Financial Statements for the year erded 20 Juns 2012
6. CHANGES [0 NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABEE TO UNH’HDLDERS {Continued)

Class C conslst of unitholders who have invested in foreign currencies and are entitied to receive the declared
distribution rate. The class C product is Non-Australian Doltar Currency Hedged Fived Term invastm ent Option.
This consists of various terms and currency products.

Subject ts the commaents refeting to the status of the Schame I Note 2, alt unitholders are entitled to receive

distributions as declared from time to time and ara entitled o ona vole per unit at unithelders” meetings, w the
event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank afier creditors and are equally entlitied 10 the proceeds of

tiguldation.
7. LOANES AND RECEIVABLES
D12 2014
$ §

Secured mortgage loans 467,528,702 480,865,724
Secured mortgage lozns — 2™ priorlty 13,310,672 11,365,047
Other unsecured loans — related party - -
Provisicn for impairment {146,265, 463) {76,425,453)
et loans and advances 334,573,501 425,805,318

As part of a struciured exit strategy for a loan the Manager may subordinste the priority of & first mortgage, As at
30 Jure 2012 there is oae foan which has been subordinated ss an exit and recovery strategy. The total amoynt
of the loan is 513,510,672 and the combined first and second fnans consiitute 63% of the value of the property

hetd as security

al Aggregate amounts receivabie fram related parties

A05E 2011
3 5
Directors and director-related eniilies — secured? 8,209,841 7,843,604
Related managed investment schemes — sacured 1,708,151 2,243,485
related managed investment schemas - unsecurad - -
9,917,897 10,493,080

No tmpairment provision has been ratsed in relation to amounts receivable to relsted partiss,

) Maturly analysis - Sstured Morkpage Loans

2012 011
& s
Less thian 3 months 264,566,390 282,808,146
3-6 months - -
§-12 months - 7,848,604
i

12-18 monihs - 13,365,087

18-24 months

24-36 months i
284,565,380 502,623,757

38 ]
[43]
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Motes o the Financlal Statsments for the vear ended 30 june 9012

7 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES {Continued)
bl Maturity analysis ~ Secured Morigage Loans {Continued)

The #bove maturity analysis is the contractual maturity of secured non-construction toans. Secured construction
toans will be rezlised through cash flows which in vears one and two will be reinvested to meet construction
costs, and which are expected to realise » net cash Inflow in thres 1o five vears isee Note 7{ch.

c Loans sacured by construction assats

The Schame’s loans and receivables Include loans of $216,3 million {30 June 2021 5200.2 million) secured on
assets under construction where the loan wil be repaid through the cash Hows of the project. The Schemels
required to access external funding ko complete these projects and the Responsthie Entity is negotiating with

current ana alternate finenders to secure the finenging to complete these projects {rafer Note 2a).

The Scherne has assessed impairnient on these assets hased on an “on complete basis”, being the difference
between a {financial asset’s carrying amount and the present valug of the expected Tuture cash Hows of the
project, discounted at the financlal asset's original effective interest rate. There is stgnificant uncertainty as to
the Scheme's ability to accass axternal funding to complete these projects. This uncertainty may impact the

abliity of the Scheme to realise thase loans and receivables at the amounts stated in the accounts,

d) Concenteation of risk

There are four {2011: four) counterparlias with which the Scheme’s cradit eposure exceads 10% of tha net

assets attribitable to unitholders as at 30 June 2012, The total value of loans, beforo ta king into account
collateral OF other credit enhancements, is $188,144,853 (2011 $190,025,272).

For concentration of risks relating to mortgage type and geographical location refer to Nots 714,

&} Pravisions for impairment

The Impairment loss expense relating to [oans and receivables comprises:

2012 2021
$ &

Specific provision
Onening balance 76,435,458 4,860,000
Impairment fosses provided for during the year 80,144,122 84,360,301
Impairment losses realised during the year (28,304,112} {12,724,848)
Clasing balance 146,265,453 76,435,453
Toetal Provision for Impairment 146,265,463 76,425,453 !
Changes to operating profit/floss} before tau for impairment
Josses on foans and recelvables compriscs:
Specific provision §9,840,610 71,625,455
Impairment losses recognised directly in Statement of
Combrehansive Ihcome 28,304,417 18,248,250

99,144,122 84,873,703
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Notes to the Finzndal Statements for the vear anded 30 June 2003

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES {Continuad)

e} Provisions for impairment {Continued)

The Scheme determines when loans are impaired on an individuat bhastke and therefore no collective pravision is

made.
2032 2031
5 s
Movement in Defauls loans
Gross default loans opening halance 481,097,628 332,854,902
New and increased default loans 67,2?1,669‘ 170,613,998
Balances written of {29,304,112) (13,248,250
Returned 1o performing or repaid (61,394,8806) (60,827,656}
Gross default loans closing halance 457,610,285 476 432 954
Spectic proviston (346,256,463} (76,425,453}
Met default loans 311,344 836 353,007,501

AL 30 June 2012, ihe balence of loans that were past due bt not impatred was 541,689,026 {2011: 157,685,871
As per the Scheme’s policy, leans are past due once they exceed 90 days overdus.

AL 30 Jure 2012, 5415,911,274 of loans were individually impaired, with z tota) Impairment loss of $146,265,462,
Interest on arrears [nans Is suspendet and not browght to account when the Rasponsible Entity considered that

the emounts are not uitimately recoverable Trom the sale procseds of the property, The amount of suspended
interest at 30 June 2012 totalicd $118,557,492 {2011: $87,077,591).

&. PAYABLED 2032 2ol
v $
Loan Management Fee pavable 2,078,206 -
Accounts payables 5,807,618 2,702,723
7,980,824 3,702,723
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Notes to tha Financial Statements for the year sided 30 June 2012

g, INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
2612 2041
s 5
Secured banlcloan 39,610,078 62,309,788

On 1 july 2010, the Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Scheme, LM investm ent Management Limited,
entered Into a new facllity with an extermnal financler, The Taclity agreement provided 2 $90 milion faciiity for two
years with an vplion to extend for an additional year with interest at 15% per annum increasing to 18% if the loan
term was extended, Or the 29 Februsry 2012, the responsible Entlty exercised this aption and extended the

facility te 30 June 2013,

in the event that repayrments are not made In secordance with the repayment plan mantiones below, the interast

rate payable fs increased by 3% for the first sh months and 5% thereafter,

The Scheme fs also required to hold a minimum cash balance of $6 mitllon, in the event that the minimum cash
balance falis below this threshold the Scheme hias 90 days to rectify the cash position,

The facility agreement requires the Scheme to make minimum repayiments over the term of the facilty, These
minimum repayments must be made in priority to zny redemptions, except for hardship provisions and feader
fund payraersts for investor distributions ang fund expensas. The scheme has met ail the regquired repayments.
in addition, where the Scheme rezlises assets or receives cash in setfiement of secured loans it nust rapay 1o the
externai financier an agreed amount that varies basad on each secured loan,

Where the Scheme has made rapayments In excess of the minimum repayrsents required, the facility allows the
Scheme to redraw funds 1o complate agreed development projects or establish new loans subject to prior

approval from the external financicr.

The facllity is secured by & fixed and floating charge over the assats of 1he Scheme, providing Deutsche Bank, as

secured tender, with first priority over the asseis ofthe Scheme.

The Scheme has complied with all loan

The Scheme's financing faclites contain various financial covenants,
compliance the curren? balance ofthe fa cility

covenants iy the faciiity agreement during the perod and remalns in
at the date of this report 15 529,409,490, The facifity Is raguired 1o be fully repaid by the 30 June 2013, see Note

28,
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LVl FIRST MORVEAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financst Staterments for the vear endad 80 June 2012
13 RELATED PARYIES

Responsible Entiiy

The Responsible Entity of LM First Mortgage Income Fund s LM Investment Management Limited {ABN 68 077
208 461} Administration end funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behall of the
Responsible Entity by L Administration Pty Limited, an associate of the Responsible Entity, LM Administistion

Py Limited Is patd & management fee directly from the Scheme.

Custordion
The Custodian of the Scheme is The Trust Company (FTAL) Umited.

Directors
The names of each person holding the position of director of L investment Management Limited during the

financial yesr are disciosad in Note 13,

Divectors’ remunaration

Na amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity, The amount of
remuneration pald by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the Responsible Entity in
connection with their responsibllities for the Scheme Is separately idemtified In Note 33,

birectors’ holdings of units
The interests of LM iavestment Management Limited podtspgsociates in the Scheme al year-end are set out

below,
2012 2013
3 g
~ L investment Manegement Limited - -
- Divectors and direcior related antities - .
166,353,218 167,378,018

@ ~ Other Associates of LM Investment Managemant Limited

fnvesting activiies

The Scheme may purchase and self units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by L
Invessment Management Limited or its assodiates in the ordinary course of busingss at application and
redemption prices caleulated in soeordance with the constitulions of those schemes. At 30 fune 2012 the Scheme
had no investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limfied or s affiliates (2022 nii),
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LM FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FURD

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2012

i, RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

ther fransaciions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investiment Management Limited, or their director-related entities, may
fnvest or withdraw from the Scheme. Thass investments or withdrawals are on the seme tarms and conditions as
those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the detuils distlosed in thisnote, no director has
entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previcus financial year sand there were no
material eontracts involving directors’ brterests subsisting at year-gnd. Alf transaclions were approved on an arm’s

lengtty basis and on normal terms and concditions.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme an behalf of the Responsible Entity by
Livi Administration Pty Limited, an sesoclate of the Responsible Entity. LM Administration Py Limited ispald a
management fee for these services directly from 5cheme assats,

Buring the year, management fees of $9,108,864 (2011: §1.0,587,188) was paid or pavable by the Scheme, Of
these fees, 59,107,864 (2011: $10,997,188 ) were paid or payable to LM Admibistration Pty Limited.

During the vear, loan origination feas recelved from borrowers within the Scheme wers 5112,600 [207.1: nil).
These fees dre charged when new lierrowings are andertzken or existing borrowings are rolled over to non-

default conditions,
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Motes io the Financial Statarments for the year ended 30 june 2022

0. RELATED PARTIES (Continuead}

Sther tratisactions with the Scheme (Continued)

The LM Managed Performance Fund (L MPF) has second mortgages on loans that are first morigsgas of the
Scheme totalling 560,281,381 {2011; 546,158,276). LM MPE may oh occasion pay development and construction
costs o those related toans. As part of its role as second mortgagee, LM MPF W fund interest payinents from
time to time within apgroved loan fadiity limits, During the 30 juna 2012 year, Interast payments fotalling

$635,999 {2011 $915,954) were paid by LV MPF on behzlf of borrowers.

Responsible Entfty remuneration recefved or due and

seveivobie

o Managemers fees for the year paid or payable
directly from LM Adminlstration Pty Limited

o Expenses including administration expenses
incurred by the Responsible Entity and its
associzted entlties, which are reimbursed in
accordance with the provisions of the Constitution

o Expenses inciuding administration expenses
incurred by the Rasponsible Entity and its
assotiated entfties, which are not reimbursed

¢ Loan management fees paid 10 the Responsibie
Entity for loan managemant and controtiership
sarvices provided by the Responsiizle Entity on
behalf of the Scheme in replacement of appointing
external receivers. These fees are charged directly
to the borrowers to Tacilitate possible futire

recovery.
Gustodion’s remuneration
v Custodian's fees paitd by the Scheme

Bolefice with reluted povties

Ageregete amounts rocelvalle from related partiss by

the Scheme were as follows;

o LM Administration Pty Limlted (management feas
prepaid by the Schame)fi)

o Australian Interagtional Investments Py Lmited {7}

o LM ‘Managed Performance Fund {if}

Aggregate amounts payable to related parties from the

Scheme were as follows:
2 LUV Administration Py Limited {management feas

payable by the Scheme) (1)
e fohn O'Sullivarn {iv}

25

012

9,103,564

28,883

38,524

4,837,414

77,804

8,200,841
4,708,354

2,470,000

109,187

i1

3

x

10,997,188

751,164

5,381,515

112,324

8,200,000

7,848,604

162,609
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LV FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Notes to the Pinanclal Statemenis for the vear ended 50 June 2012

RELATED PARTIES {Continued}

Other tronsactions with the Scheme [Contintied)

§.  These amounts are Included in management fee payables of 52,470,800 at 30 june 2012 (2012 prepayment

i),

il

i),

of $8,200,000), The average monthiy balance of prepayments during the vear was 5153, 808 (2011;
58,200,000} which was non-interest bearing, Interest foregone on the above amount if caleulated at the
weighted average cash rate of 4,15% (2011 4.029) would have been 58,383 {2074 £329,640), Ifthis revenue
had been collected, the stim foregone would have been patd to Lv Administration Py Limited as
manegement fees or reduction In change in ngt assets attributable to unithotders during the vear, As a1 30
June 2012, there was payable of $2,470,000 te LMV Administration Py Limited for management fees.

Peter Charles Drake is a director ami-"éuarantardf Australian International investment Services Pty Limited
which is a jolnt borrower in a securad 1585 Yacility outstanding to the Schame as at 30 June 2017 for
58,200,841 [2011; $7,849,604), Thistrarsaction was approved on an arm’s length basis and is on normal
tarms and conditions, Peter Chaties Drake has no ability to defive financial benefis from this mortgage loan.

The Scheme has @ loan with LM MPF that s interest bearing &t 11%, This loan fs 2 performing asset and is wall
spcured.

John O'Sullivan 15 the beneficial owner of O'Sullivan Capital Management Limitad, which has baan engaged by
Ll Investment Management Limited to provide markeling services in Nevr Zealand. For the year ended 30
June 2012, 388,708 {2011: $95,645) in adviser marketing commission has hean earned, with $109,157 {2021:
$162,609) payable. This engagement is on normal commercial terms and at arm's length and remains in place
after John O'Sulllvan’s resignation as director,
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AGEE INCORME FURD

Notes to the Finanda! Siatements Tor the vear ended 30 june 2022

10, RELATED PARTIES (Coniinuerd)

Unitholder investing aciivities

Datails of holdings in the Schame by LM Investment Management Limited, its affillates including directors and
director related parsons or other schemos mansped by LM Investment Management Limited are set out bajow:

Entity

30 June 2012

LM Currency Pratected Australian
Income Fund

LM instibutional Currency
Protectad Australian thcome
Fupd

Ly Wholesale First Mortgape
Income Furid

Dhani Daray

Tetal

Entlty

Z0 hine 2011

L Currancy Protected Australian
Incomes Fund

Livi Institutional Currency
Protected Australian income
Fund

Livl Whotesale First Morigage
Income Fund

Bhani Darcy

Fotal

invesiment st Interest held  Units Issued Uinits Bistributions
year and in the scheme during the redesmead pafd angd
g at vear end yvear during the payable
% ¥ year &
#
87,470,115 24.75% 13,241,691 2,176,302 10,748,362
5,698,013 1.80% 1,271,368 481,008 1,039,548
72,364,922 20,42% 6,268,761 3,264,195 5,236,501
169 0.00% - - -
166,223,219 A7.07% 20,781,820 5,621,505 16,904,211
investmentat  Intarest hakd  Unltsissued Units Distrihutions
yaar end inthe scheme  during the redeemed paid and
& at year end year during the payablia
o # year g
#
84,319,198 22.31% V264,994 19,905,896 5,945,879
§,077,442 1.68%% 520,651 2,828,648 430,529
76,681,193 20.20% 7,952, 480 3,578,488 2,459,271
185 0.00% 5 - -
157,578,018 44.05% 10,739,150 25,813,433 8,835,678
31
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Notes to the Finoncial Stetements for the vear ended 30 June 20172

1% RECEIVABLES

2012 2011
g 2
Mortgage interest receivable 972,381 028,706
Penally interest receivable 184,131 132,446
GST recaivable 120,451 674,721
Othay 5,865 16,576
1,279,828 1,753,849

During the year, the penalty intorest receivable was capiialised onta the secured moltgage fozn balance. Refer
Note 7 Leans and Receivaliies.

iz, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

aj Recondiliation of cash and cash anuivalents
Forthe purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash

equivalents compelsa:

2012 2011
5 4
- ash at bank and in hand 8,123,428 18,475,447

Cash at bank and in hand carns interest st floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates,
The fair value of cash and tash equivalents is 8,123,428 (2041 518,475,487),

Asat B0 Junc 2012, $317,967 {2011: 5357,071} of cash ai bank was held in fereign exchange marghn accounts and
wias not available for use by the Scheme.

The Stheme's borrowing agresment requlres the Scheme to hoid a rinimum cash balence of $6 millien across
twa bank aceounts, one of which Is a restricted sccount. The Scheme’s Bnanciar is required authorise cash
outllows from the restricted account {into which loan settlement proceeds are received) and in the event that the
minimum cash bolance is breached, the financier is required to avthorise all cash outflows, including those from
the unvestricted account which receipts interest from horrowars,

As al 30 Iune 2017 the Scheme held $3,687, 652 across these two bank accounts and therafare was below the
minimures cash balance required under the facliity. Since the vesr-end and within the 90 day allowabde perlod for
rectlffcation the minimuim cash balance has been mat,

i
{
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LV FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Rotes to the Finangial Staterients for the vear ended 30 June 2002

2. CASM AND CASH ECUAVALENTS {Cantinued)
b} Reconciliation of change in net asseis attributable {o unitholders to net cash flows from cperating activities
2012 2011
b %
Change in net assets atributable io unithofders {105,340,882) {90,886,748)
Adiustments for:
Noh-cash impainment expense 98,845,139 83,974,954
Nor-cash Interest income {33,526,951} {31,158,288)
Non-cash Management fees 4,228,333} -
Distributions to unitholders 16,533 426 14,295,925
{Gains}/lass on foreign exchange contracts {145,432} (1,134,069)
{Gains)fioss o investor funds {167,304} 1,338,500
{incresse)/decreasea In interest receivable (87,2285) 398,057
{Increase)/decrease in other receivables 11,731,431 10,065,637
Increase/{decrease) in payabies 717,585 2,353,983
(13,578,756} {10,752,049)

Met cash flows fromy/{used in} operating activities

o} Reinvestment of distributions

During the firanclal vear, the Scheme issued 536,904,211 (2012: 512,098,705} a5 a resu't of retnvestment of distributions
by unitholders, These fransactions have 1ot been incuded in the Statement of Cash Fiows,
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LIV FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUNT

Notes to the Financial Siatemants for the year ended 30 June 2612
13, HEY MANAGEMIENT PERSONMNEL DISCLOSURES
{a} Datalls of ey Management Personnel
i Key Management Personnal

The Key Management Personnel (“KMPY) of the Scheme were desmed b0 he the Directors of the Respansibie Entity, The
Diyestors of the Responsible Entity during the vear were:

Execative directors

i Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1897

s Lisa Miaree Darey Appointed 15 September 2003 — Resiened 21 fune 2012
Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appoinied 22 June 2006

Ms Francene Maree Mulder Appointad 30 Septemiber 2006

M Simon Ticknar Appointed 18 September 2008 - Resigned 13 July 2012
WMr Grant Fischer Appointed 14 March 2012 — Reslghad 12 August 2012

Non-executive directors .
MrJohn Osullivan Appointed 27 November 2007 — Resigned 19 September 2012

{h} Commpensation of Key Management Personnel
{1 Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KivIP 1s paid by L Administration Pty Limited, appointed by LM Investment Management
LimHed a5 per its service agreement with that entity. The KMP do hot recaive any remuneration directly from the
Scheme and there are no agreements In place hetween the KMP and the Schem e. The remuneration of KMP as
disclosad below has been allocated based on the sagh (P cost of remuneration applicable 1o the Scheme. The
principles used to allocate these costs (for disclosure purpnses only) are discussed below.

{ii) Exerittive Directors

The Executive Diractors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited are raesponsible for
determining and reviewing compensation srrangements for the KVIP of the Responsible Entity, The Executive
dirgctors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the KMP on a periodic basis by
reference to retevant employment market conditiens with the oversall objectiva of ensuring maximum sikeholder
benefit from the retention of a high quality board. it is Intended that the manner of payment chosen will be
optimal for the reciplent without creating undua cost for the Responsible Entity,

It Is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into with the Executive
Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

{ifi} Non- executive dirgerors
rees pald to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executlve Directors, This takes inio

account worlkload requirements and responsibiiities of ench Director, Feas for duties as Directors are not pald to
executive Directors as thelr remuneration is provided as part of their normel terms and conditions.

34
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L FIRET MORTEAGE INCOME FURD

Notes to the Finsncial Satements Tor the year ended 30 June 20172

14, LEV MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (Continuad)

{iv} Principles of KiAP Remunerdtion Allocations
Forali sthemes managed by the Responsibie Entity, the cost of tota! KMP remuneration hss been allacated 1o

each schame. The Rasponsible Enttty has estimated the amount of time spent by each KMP performing
responsibifittes and duties to individual schemes, and on a percentage basis, has allocited the remuneration cost
to gach stheme, Whers a KMP has not spent time spacifically on a scheme, but rather has acted in a role a5 KMP
of the Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly seross all schermies.
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LIV FIRST MORTGAGE INCGME FUND

Moies to the Financiel Statements for the year anded 80 Jene 2043

2. HEY MARAGEWMENT PERSONNEL DISCIOBURES [Comtitrnad)

Lompensation by categaty: ey Banagemaent Personnel

201% Z01E
% 5
Shost term 366,235 319,767
Post employment 13,754 14,974
Other long term - -
Tarmination baneiits N .
Equity based payment - .
Cther - -
379,524 234,241

Loans to Spaciiied HMP

The Schems has hot made, guaranteed or secured, directly or Indirectly any loans to the KMP or their related

entities during the period,
{c} Other Transactions and Balances with Spacified ap

Gther than those ftems disclosed 1n the related party Note 10, the Scheme has no other transactions and

balances with specified KViP,

ik, FéTﬂANCIAi RISK MANAGEMENT QBIECTIVES AND DPOLICIES

al  Fnancial Risk Management Ohjectives, Policies, and Processes

Rislks arlsing Trom holding Finandial instrumants are inherent in the Schema’s activities, and are managad
through a process of ongeing identification, meastremeant, and manitoring. The Scheme is exposed to credit
risk, Houidity risk, and market risk.

Finandial insiruments of the Scheme comprise investments in financial assets for the purpose of generating o

retlen on the Investment made by unitholders, in additionto derivatives, cash and cash eruivalents, net assets
attributable to unitholders, and other financial instruments such as trade deblors snd crad ftors, which arise

directly from its operations.

The Respansible Entlty Is responsible for identifying and controliing the 1isks that arise from these Tinancial

instruments,

The 1isks are measured using a method that reflects the expected Impact on the results snd net prsaty
attributable to unitholders of the Schame from reasonably possible changes in the relevant risk variabies,
infermation: about these risk expoesures ai the reporting date, measured on this basis, s disciosed balow,
Informstion aboul the totaf fair value of financial instrumments exposed to risk, a5 well as compliance with
established Investment mandate limits, is alse monitored by the Responsible Entlty. These mandate imits reflact
the invastrment strategy end marlet environment of the Scheme, as wel] ss the level of risk that the Scheme is

willing to accept,

48]
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LiVi FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME BUND

Motas w the Financial Statoments for the year ended 30 june 2012

FHIANTIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES [Continued)

fd
o

aj Financizl Risk Management Objectives, Policias, and Processes [Continuad)

This informatian is preparad and reported to relevani parties within the Responsible Entity on a regular busis as
deamed appropriste, induding the fund manager, compliance managar, other key management, Risk and
Investment Comimlttess, and uithnately the Beard of Directors of the Responsible Entity.

As part of ils visk management sirategy, the Scheme uses foreign exchange contracts to manage exposures
resulting from changes in foreign currencies,

or contracts are entered Into with the same

Concentrations of risk arise when & number of financial Instruments
or activities in the

counterparty, of where a nurnber of counterpartias are ergaged in similar business activities,
saire geographic region, or have simitar economic features that would cause their ahillty to meet contractual
obligations to be similerly affected by changes In ecohomte, political, and other conditions.

eme monitors s exposure to ensure concentrations of

In order o avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the S¢f
truments and

risk remain within acceptable levels and cither reduces the exposure or uses derivative ins
coifateral to manage the excessive concentrations when the arise,

b} Craciz Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fall to discharge an

obligation and cause the Schame to incur 2 financia! loss.

With respect to cradit risk arising from the financlal assets af the Scheme, other than derfvatives, the Schemea's
exposure to oredit rislc arises from default of the counterparty, with the current axpposure equalio the fair vaiue
of these Instrurents as disclosed In the Stelement of financial position, This does not represant the maxdmum
risk exposure that could arlsa In the future a5 a result of changes in values, but bast reprasents the current

maximum exposure at the reporting date,

Credit risk arising from derivative firancial instruments is, at any fime, limited to those with positive fajr valyes.

Tha Scheme minimises credit risk by:

- undertaking credit asseéssment procedures on prospective borrowers;
dealing with Australian regulated banls for cash balances; and

- obtaining Independent valuations for all loans,

As atyear end, mortgage foans were secured 55 follows:
Acombination of completed development projects, indusirial 4.46% (2001 8.05%) and residential 38.57%

(2011 2312%)
b} land 6.00% (2011: 3.62%):

ci Commerdial property 16.65% (2011 19.15%); and
Construction and development projects in the residential and retiremeant sectors B4,32% {20r.1; 36,05),

850



Livi FIRST MIORTGAGE INCOWME FUND
Mates to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 June 2017
2, FINARNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLISIES {Continued)
53] Cracit Risk {Continued}
Risk concentrations of credit risk
Concenirations of credit risk are managed by counterparty and by geographical region. The percentape of
loans secured by property in different geographicea! focations is as follows:

712 201%

Within 40km of Sydney CBD 1.25% 1.85%

Mew South Wales — Dther 14.95% 17.42%
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 7.57% 4,345
Victoria — Other - -
Queensland -~ Dther 66.16% (5.83%
Canberra — Other 2.16% 1.56%
Waestern Australia 6.55% RAB%
Tasmania 1.22% G.82%

100.00% 106.00%

Counterparty concentration has been disclosed at Note 7{d),

The mawimum credit risk exposure at vear end in relation to mortgage loan is the carrying velue of the assets
as indicated in the Statermant of Financial Position.

The Scheme has a concentration of eredit risk refating to the derivative instruments as all foreign currency
swaps are entered into with the same counterparties.

Cradit guality of morigage loans
The credit quality of financial asseis was managed by the Scherme using Internal risk rating categories in

accordance with the investmant mandate of the Scheme. The Scherme currently monitors eredit guality
through active management of the underiying securlty to maximise recovery.

As at 30 June 2012, the Scheme enforced lis rights to securtty refating (o foans in default of 5403.6 miflion
{2011 $205.2 milion} and had faken possesslon of assels offered as collateral security valued at 53062

mitfion {2017: 5415.2 milion}.

b} Liguidity risk
Liquidity riskis the risk that the Scheme fiay not be able to meet its obligations in refatlon to Investment

activities or funding unitholder redemptions.

The nature of the investments entered into by the Scheme commands that liguidity be managed cautiously
ard alighed to the redemptions policy outlined within the constitution of the Scheme. Af 30 june 2012, the
redemptions requested front unithoiders but not paid was 133,308,960 (2014: $144,187,7021, An additions]
$120,270,451 {2011: $147,917,267) of redemplions had been requester by urltholders of the feader funds —

refer to Mole 6.

Eal
o
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LiVi FIRST MIORTEASE INCOME FUND

Noies to the Financizl Statements for the vear ended 30 Juns 2012

i4, FINANCIAL RIS MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

e Liguidity risk {Continued)

During the 2009 year, the Responsible Entity closed the Scherne o new investors and suspended withdrawals,
with the exception of those approved under hardship provisions and feeder funtd payments for distributions
and expanses, Feeder funds are sther registered managed investament schemas that have fhvested directly In
the LM First Mortgage income Fund. Redemptions are genarally to be paid within 365 days of the investment
maturity term, however, redemptions have been suspendead, per the constitution, @s the Rosponsible Entity
considers the suspersion of withdrawals to be in the best interest of the members of the Scheme,

As at 25 October 2012, $133,510,945 of redemptions had been requested by unitholders but not vet paid.
Redemgtions also rark behind repayment of external financing facllities as detailad in Note 2{al.

Maiurity Anolysis of Financiof Hobilities

Financial liabilities of the Scheme comprise trade and other paya bles, distributions payabie, net assets
atiributable to unitholders, fair value of foreign axchange contracts arnid the secured bank loan. Trade and
other payebles and distributions payable have no contractual maturities but are typlcally sgttfed within 30
days. Foreign exchange contracts mature within 12 months of vear end,

Net assets attributable to unitholders mature over the foliowing pericds:

Periot from 20 Juns 2012 Yalue

bue and payable® 266,485,793

<12 months 94,508,469
1224 months 8,255,443
24-36 months 714,757

321,641

36-48 months

=48 months

Total 3?8,294,16{!

* This halante represents redamptions reguested but not paid at 30 June 2012 of $253,578,411 (2011:

$202,791,534).
The secured bank loan Is repayable by 30 June 2013, as detailed in Note 2{a}land 10, Whan drawn, the loan is

secured by the assets of the Scheme.

as
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LW FIRET MORTEAGE INDOME FUND

Motes to the Finandal Statements for the year ended 32 June 2812

FINAMCIAL RISH MANAGEMENT GBIECTIVES AND POLICIES {Continued)

14,
d) Market risk

Marlet risk Is the risic that the falr value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due ta
changes in market varlables such as interest rates, forelgn exchange rates, and equlty prices. Market rislcis

managed and monitored using sensitivity analysis, and minlmised through ensuring that all investment
activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate fimits and investment sirategies.

interest vote visk

Intarest rate risk avises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affact future cash flows or the
fair value of finandlal nstruments. The Scheme has established limits on investments in interest bearing

assets, which ate monitored on a daily basis.

The Scheme’s exposure to Interest rate risk and the effect weighted average interest rate for classes of

financial essets and financial liabiities is set out below:

AL
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LM FIRET MORTGAGE INCOME FLURD
Notesto the Financial Slatemenis for the vaar ended 20 June 2092
14, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND PRUCIES (Continued}
o} Marlet risl {Continued)

frserest rate visk {Continued)

The Tollowing table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Scheme’s Statement of Comprehensive Income to a
reasonably possible change i interest rates, with afl other variables hald constant,
The sensitivity of the Statement of Comprehensive Income Is the effact of the assumed changes in interest rates on

the intarest income for one year, based on the finandal Instruments held at 30 June 2012,

Accounting assumpiions
The basis points sensitivity Is based on the historical volatility of changes In interest rates.

2012
Change in basis points Sensltivity of interest
income (S000's)
increase Decrease fncregse Dpcrecrsc
Finanetal Instruments 50 =0 2556 2,556
| nan tme 100 100 5,192 5,162
2012
''''''''' Change in basis points Sensitivity of interest
income {S000's)
Increase  Decrease Increase  Decreose
) L . 50 50 2,700 2,700
Financial imstruments 100 100 5,401 5,401

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fitwre cash flows of a fnancial instrument will fluctuata due to changes

in foreign-exchange raies. The Schame enters into forsiga exchange contracts principally to hedge the fareign
exchange risk implicit in the value of the invastor funds denominated in forefun currencles and to secure a particular
axchange rate for a planned purchase or saie of Investments. The term of the contracts rarely exceeds twalve

months,

The falr value of forward exchange contracts held at 30 June 2012 was o pavabie of $129,152 (2011 recelvable of
533,601},

The nominal Ausiralian doflar value of forward exchange contracts held &t 30 June 20172 was 88,512,056 {2011:
510,570, LBEG).

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Scheme had significant sxposure at 30 June 2017 on its
manetary assets and labifities and forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of reasonabiy possible

movement of the currency rate agalnst the Ausiralian Doliar on the Statement of Comprehensive Incorme, with all

other variables held constant.

43
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LIV FIRST MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 30 Juns 2012

14, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ORIECTIVES AND POLIZIES {Continued)

Foreign currency

Investments in the fund are hedged In the relevant curren ty against Australian dollar currency move

manages forelgn currency risk through the yse of forwa rd forelgn exchange contracts {FFEC).

The FFECs are facilitated by several foreign exchange dealers. This reduces currency exposure to the fund and
investors. The balow table s only applicable if the FREC facifitstor Is unable to meet its obligation and the fund

therefore seeks an aiternatlive parly to transact the FFEC,

Accounting Assumptions- Variabifity af forelgn currency
The sansitivity is based on the volatility of cha rges in global currency.

ments. The fund

-

2012

Effect on net assets attribuiahle to |

Currency FFEC AUD equivalent in Change in currency rate in %
exposure by currency {{{30's) unttholders |
ncrease Recreass {000°s}
_ Incregse Decrease
CAD - 10 | 10 - e
| EuR 976 10 | 10 88 108
| Gop 1,559 10 10 142 173
| Hikp ﬁ 556 1 10 66 66
| JpY | - 10 10 - -
| Nz 2,848 10 10 366 408
| 56D 149 10 10 14 17
| THB 224 i 10 20 25
TRY 52 | 10 10 g 10
Usp 1,007 | 10 10 93 110
! 2011
Currency FFEC AUD equivalent in Change it currehcy rate in % ! Effect on net assets attributable to
expasure by currancy {000's) unitholders
ticrease Decregse {000’s}
ncrease Decrease
| CAD | 5 iG 10 | o] 1]
[ Eun | 1,376 10 30 s | 153
GEP | 1,846 W 0 172 | 210
HKD | 963 | 10 10 on S
L ey [ - 0 10
[ NzD ! 4,657 10 10 403 293
[5G0 196 10 10 1 | 22
THE 29 10 10 2 | E
TRY 346 10 10 13 16
e | 1,375 10 10 177 150
Eguity Risk

The Scheme ie not subject to equity risk a3 30 June 2007,

Ad

856



LMV FIRST MIORTGAGE INCOME FLIND
Wotes to the Financal Satements for the yesr ended 20 June 2012

5. FAIR VALUES OF FIGANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The scheme’s financial assers and liabilities includad (n the Statement of Financial Position are carried at thetr fair
value as disclosed by class of finandal instruments or st amounis thal anproximate their fair valuas.

Refar to Note 2 for the methods and assumptions adepted in determining fajr values for investments,

Disclosed helow Is the fair value of the Scheme’s financial instruments.

The following meathods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and labilities.

Fair vatue: The Scheme uses various methods in estimating the fair vatue of 2 financial instrument. The methods

comprise:

Laval 1 — the falr value is celcolated using guoted prices in active markets;

tevel 2 — the falr value is estimated using inputs other than guoted prices included in Level 7 that are observable for
the asset or liability, sither directly {as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices);

Level 3 —the fair value is esthmated using Inguts for the asset or labifity that are not based on observable mariet

data.
Falr Valae Carrving
Arnount
212 Leval 1 tevel 2 Lavel 5 Total
$ § 5 $ $
Finanial Assets
Forward currency - - - - .
contracts
‘Tetal Financie Assets - - - - -
Financial Liabilitics
Forward currency - 128,147 - 128,182 129,182
conlracts
Total Financial Liabiiies 28,192 - 139,182 120,587
Fair Value Carrying
‘ Amount
20172 Levegil Lavel 2 fevel 8 Total
$ § $ $ $
Fipancial Assets
Forward currency - 33,691 - 33,601 33,691
contracts
Toted Financial Assols - 33,691 - 35,694 58,591
Finantial Lisbifitles
Forward cirrency - - - -
| contracis
Tetal Financial Liabilities - - - - R

The fair valuss of currency exchange contracts (forwards and swaps) are celcufaled by refarence 10 current exchange
rates for contracts with simifar maturity and risk profijes,

45
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LAY FIHST MORTGAGE INCOIVIE EUND
Notes to the Financls! Statemants for the veer ender 20 June 20042

i6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

There are 0o material contingent assets and Habilities or commitmants as al 30 June 2012,
17 EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF BALANCE DATE

No significant events have occurred since balance date which would impact on the financial position of the Scheme
distiosed in the balence sheet as at 20 June 2012 or on the results and cash flows of the Scheme for the year endlad :

on that date, other than those delailed below:
{a} Sratus of distributions payable

As ot 30 Jupe 2012, 54,755,833 of distributions payable related to distributions that were raguired 1o be paid under
the Scheme’s Constitutlon prior to 30 Jine 2002, In addition, $4,655,305 of distributions payable as at 16 November
2012 that ware reotired to be paid under the Scheme’s Constitution remain pavable. These distributions relate to ;
the months of uly, August and September. Since year end, $0 in distributions payable has been paid refating '
distributions acerued in the previeus period (see to Note 3L

44
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L FIHRST MORTGAGE IMCOME FUND

MHRECTORS BECLARATION

In actordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM investment Managament Umited, [state that:

a} The financial statements and notes of tho Registerad Scheme set out on pages 810 46 are in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including

(i) complying with Accounting Standerds and the Corporation Regulations 2001; and

(i} giving a true 2nd falr view of the Schems’s financial position as at 30 june 2012, endof its
performance, as rapresented by the results of iy cperations and fts cash flows for the financial yesr
ended on that date.

(it} the financial statements and notes to the financial stetements are prepared in complisnce with the
international Financial Reporting Standards as made by the Intemational Accounting $tandards Bpard.

b} thers are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able to pay its debis as and wheén they
hecome dus and payable; and

¢)  the financial statenients are in accordante with the provisions of the Scheme's Constitution.

On behalf ofthe Board

Ll Investment MManagement Limited.

Peter Drake
Birector

@old Coast

16 Movernber 2042

47
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independent audifor’s report o the unitholders of L First Morlgage
income Fund

Report on the Financial Report

We have auditad the accompanying financial report of L First Mortgage Income Fund ("the Scherme?,
which comprises the statement of financial pesition as at 30 June 2012, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to unlthoiders and statement of
cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of slgnificant accounting policies, gther
explanatory notes and the directors' declaration,

Directors’ Responsibllity for the Financial Report

The dlrectors of the responsible entity of the Schame are responsible for the preparalion and fair
presentatlon of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accourting Interpretationsy and the Corporations Act 2001, This responsibility includes
establishing and maintaining internal confrols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financisl report that is free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud ar error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policles; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in He

circumstances,

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an epinion on the financial report based on our audit, We conductad pur
audit In accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standlards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perferm the audit to obfain
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement,

An audi involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disciosurss in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on our Judgement, inciuding the assessment of the
risks of materlal misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or grrof. in malking those risk
assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial repori in order o deslgn augh procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audis
also includes evajualing the appropriateness of accounting poilcles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as wall as evaluating the overali presentation of the financial

report.

We beligve thal the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to nrovide a basis for
our audil opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audil we have met the independence requirements of the Cororations Act 2007, We
have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor's Independence Declaration, 2 copy of which
is Included in the directors' report.

Liabifity firoifed by 2 scheme approved
under Professionsl Standards Leqislation
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Avditor’s Opinion

It our opinien:

1. the financial report of LM First Morigage Income Fund is in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:
e giving a [rue and fair view of the financial position of the Scheme at 30 June 2012 and of

its performance for the vear ended on that date; and
(i complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Austrafian Accolnting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001 .

the financial report also complies with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Stendards Board,

e

Materfal Uncertainty Regarding Continuation &5 a Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2(a) in the financial resort which indlcates that
the Scheme has inancing facilities that expire on 30 June 2013, As a result there is significant
uncerfainty whether the Scheme will continug as a going concern, and theérefore whather it will realise its
assets and exlingWish ks #abiities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the
financiat report. The financial report does not include any adjustments relaiing fo the recoverability and
classification of recerded asset amounts or to the amounts and classHication of Jabitities that might be

necessary should the Scheme not continue as a going concern,

Material Uncertainty Regarding Access to Extérnal Funding To Flrance Projects

Witheut qualitying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 7 which indicates that the Stheme is currently
in negotiations with external financiers to aceess the funding required fo complete projects on which losns
and receivables are secured. As a result of these malters there is significant uncertainty whether the
Scheme will be sble fo complete thase projects and realise iis assets af the amounts stated in the financial
report, In addition, the forecast cashflows Trom these projects are subject to significant risks In relation to
timing and amount. This as an area of significant uncertainty and judgement and accordingly, we bring it
to your attention,

Material Uncertainty Regarding Declarsd Distribuiions

During the period, the Scheme declared distributions of 316,904,211 o Class B unitholders {the Feeder
Funds), as described In Wote 3. These distributions have heen fully reinvested back into the Scheme by the
Feeder Funds durlng the period. Compliance with the Trust Deed and Corporations Act 2001 in relation o
These distributions is & matter of legal Interpretation and the Responsible Entity beflevas it has an
arguable position o support the declaration of these disiributions as being fafr and reasonable to all
classes of unitholders, This s an area of significant kdgement and accordingly, we bring it fo your

atterrtion.

.
Forese atten rx;?;\)

o

Ernsl & Young

IR R AN T

Paulz Mcluskie
Pariner

Brishane

16 Movember 2012
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SUPREME COURT OF QUEENSLAND

ni:"::%“; . ey 'ﬁ: A %"g
P

REGISTRY! Brishans
NUMBER: BS 10478 of 2011

IN THE MATTER OF EQUITITRUST LIMITED ACN 061 383 944

Applicant; EQUITITRUST LINITED ACN 061 383 244
AND
Responderts: THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND

ARSK 089 079 854 AND THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUST
PRIORITY CLASS INCOME FUND ARSN 089 079 729

ORDER

Before: Justice Applegarth
Date: 23 Novemnber 2011

Initiating document:  Application filad 15 November 2011 and Oral Application made 21
November 2011

THE ORDER OF THE COURT {8 THAT:

1. Pursuantto 2.1101B{1) of the Corporations Act 2007 (Cth) (the Act) David Whyte (Mr
Whyte) be appointed as

(a) a receiver of the property of the Equititrust Income Fund (£/F); and
(b) a racelver of the property of the Equilitrust Priority Class Income Fund {ERPCHE).

: “:"'_é-_:.;.f:fj%ugjsuant to 5.8071NF(2) of the Act David Whyte (Mr Whyte) be appointed as:
P \’4 jd ;{'-:.\:\\

: »3} a recelver of the property of the Equititrust Income Fund (EfF); and

3 receiver of the property of the Equititrust Priority Class Income Fund (EPCIF).

ORDER Australian Securitiss & Investments Commission
et on behalf of the Intervenar Hugh Copley, Litigation: Counsel

Form 58 Rude 661 Level 20, 240 Queen Streel, Brishane Qld 4000
Tel (07) 3867 4700

Fax: {07) 3867 4728

Ref. K Rodgers (11-40025)
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3. Pursuant to s.11013(1) of the Act, Mr Whyte have, in refation to the property for which he is
appointed receiver pursuant to Order 1 above, the powers set out in 5.420 of the Act in
addition to the powers set out in s.1107B{8)(a) to {¢) of the Acl.

4. Pursuant to s.601NF(2) of the Act, Mr Whyte have, in relation to the property for which he is
appointed recelver pursuant to Order 2 above, the powers set out In £.420 of the Act and the

powers set out in 5. 1101B(8)(a) ie (o) of the Act.

Fursuant to 5. 11018(1) of the Act, Mr Whyte in respect of the appointment made in Crder 1
above:

o

(1) be indemnifled out of the assets of the EIF in respect of any proper expersas or
costs incurred in acting as receiver of the property of the EIF;

{b) be indemniiied out of the assets of the EIF in respect of any proper expenses or
costs incurred in acting as receiver of the properly of the EPCIF;

(¢} be entitled to claim remuneration in respect of the time spent by him and by any
servants or agents of BDO who parform work in the receivership of the property of
the EIF at rates and amounts to be approved hy the Court and be indemnified out of
the assets of the EIF inrespect of such remuneration;

{d) be entitled to claim remuneration in respect of the time spent by him and by any
servants or agents of BDO who perform work in the receivership of the property of
the EPCHF at rates and amounts to be approved by the Court and be indemnified out
of the assets of the EPCIF in respect of such remuneration,

8. Pursuant to s.80INF(2) of the Act, Mr Whyte in respect of the appointment made in Order 2
above.

(8) be indemnified out of the assets of the EIF in respect of any proper expenses or
costs incurred in acting as receiver of the property of the EIF;

(b) be indemnified out of the assels of the EIF In respect of any proper expenses or
costs ncurrad In acting as receiver of the propery of the EPCIF;

{c) be entitled to cleim remuneration in respect of the time spent by him and by any
servants or agents of BDO who perform work in the receivership of the property of
the EIF at rates and amounts to be approved by the Court and be indempified cut of

the assets of the EIF in respect of such remuneration;

(d) be entitled to claim remuneration In respect of the time spent by him and by any
servants or agents of BDO who perform work in the recelvership of the property of
the EPCIF at rates and amounts to be approved by the Court and te indemnified out
of the assets of the EPCIF in respect of such remuneration,

7. That nothing in this Order prejudices the rights of the National Australia Bank Limited,

Commoanwealth Bank of Australia Limied or Bank of Scotland Irternational Lid, pursuant to
any securities any of them hoid over Equititrust Lid or the property of the EiF.
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8. That by 4pm on Thursday 24 November 2011, Equititrust Ltd publish on fts website
{www.equititrust,com.au}, in pdf form, by way of notice to its members of the EfF and EPCIF
a copy of this Order, which publication shall be sufficient nofice to members of the EIF and

ERCH of this Order.

9. Thatthe parties appearing on this application, save for ASIC, be naid their costs of and
incidental to this Application, to be assessed on the standard basis, out of the EiF.

10. There be general licerty to apply o any person affected by these Orders, including liberty fo
apply for further directions in sccordance with s 801NF(2) of the Act.

{E‘wﬁi«u}aclvﬁ“ oXu (@E’iﬁ)

864
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{0
oC Q/@y SUPREME COURT OF QUEENSLAND
ykw’*.
PEPTAY REGISTRY: BRISBANE
3 § YR NUMBER: BS 10478 OF 2011
).

IN THE MATTER OF EQUITITRUST LIMITED (RECEIVERS AND MANAGERS
APFPOINTED (IN LIQUIDATION) ACN 061 383 944

Apphcant; EQUITTIRUST LIMITED (RECFEIVERS AND MANAGERS
APPOINTED (IN LIQUIDATION) ACN 061 383 944
AND

Respondents: THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND ARSN (89

479 854 AND THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUST PRIORITY
CLASS INCOME FUND ARSN 089 079 729

ORDER
Before: The Honourable Justice Mullins
Date: 25 Cctober 2012

Initiating Docnment: Application filed 21 September 2012
THE ORDER OF THE COURT IS THAT:

1 Pursuant to subparagraph 3(d) of the Order of the Honourable Justice Applegarth made on 21
November 2011 and subparagraphs 5(c) and 6(c) of the Order of the Honourable Justice
Applegarth made on 23 November 2011, the remuneration of David Whyte, for the period 22
November 2011 to 31 August 2012, be fixed in the amount of $837,103.85 (inclusive of GST);

and

2. The costs of and incidental to the application filed on 21 September 2012 be costs in the

winding up and the receivership of the Equititrust Income Fund, to be paid out of the assets of

the Equititrost Income Fund,

Signed@%m

BERUFY mea{STHAR

GADENS LAWYERS
Level 11, 111 Bagle Street .
BRISBANE QLD 4000
Tel No.: 073231 1666

Fax Mo 07 3229 5850

SZCISK:201204781
BNEDOCS Order of Justice Mulling dated 25 Qotober 2012
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Tel: +&1 7 3237 H999 Level 18, 300 Queen 5t

Fax:+617 3221 9227 Brisbane QLD 4000

www.bdo.com.au GPC Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001
AUSTRALIA

TO INVESTORS

& November 2012

EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND ARSH 089 079 854 (“EIF")
(RECEIVER APPOINTED) (“The Fund®)

{ refer to my previous reports and now provide my ninth update to investors on the progress of
the winding up of the Fund by me as Court appointed receiver of the property of the Fund.

1. Receipts and Payments

I provide below a summary of the Receipts and Payments of the Fund for the period since my
last report of 3 October 2012,

i

Opening Cash at Bank 1,502,902.58
Interest Income 1,957.78
Loan Recoveries:
Rosea Pty Ltd 18,333.33
Toowoomba (Foundry Shopping Centre) Pty Ltd 76,118.27
Tweed Central Pty Lid 395,173.70 489,625.30
Total Recelpts 491,583.08

Bank Charges 19.00

Distressed Loan funding:
Boothers Pry Lid 3,423.65
Checkling Pty Ltd 2,920.04
Corymbia Corporation Pty [td 880.00
Corymbia Estates Pty Lid 8,796.81
CTP Pry Lid 3,630.00
East Coast Pty Ltd 29,915.61
Gonfanon Pty Ltd 2,047 .55
Kele Property Group 17,397.92
Toowoomba (Foundry Shopping Centre) Pty Lid 716,353.51

800 Bus'riess Recovery & sctveney (QL3] Py Ltd ABN 90 134 036 507 15 2 remiber of a national assccintion of independent antitids whith are ail members 1
of SO0 (pustralla) Led ABN 77 050 110 273, a0 Aastalian campany limited by guafantes, BOD Business Recovery B hsobvengy (01D Ply Lid snd 00O

{Auslratia) Lid are members of BOQ international Ltd, 2 UK carpany limited by guarantee, 2ad farm sart of the isternational 8D0 network of independent
member firms, Liabilfty limited by a scheme approved under Protessional Standards Legistation (other than for the wcts or smissions of fihancial services
licensees) in 2ach State or Territory Gther than Tainania.
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Tweed Central Pty Ltd 23,446.52

Western Land Corporation 22,900.74

Windsor Turf Pty Ltd 3,300.00

Wirrina Cove 62,479,50 897,492,15
Equititrust Premium Fund (Receivers and Managers Appointed) 5.000.00
Settlement from Guarantor '
iT expenses 7,395.70 :
Legal Fees 2,643.90
Office Rental charge ¢,188.27
Staff Wages and Retmbursements 11,234 87
Superannuation remittance 7,933.97 !

Total Payments 937,507.8%

Closing Cash at Bank 1,056,577.80

[ note that the *Distressed Loan Funding’ retates to marketing costs, agents’ fees, consubtants’
fees and rates and land tax, The incurring of these costs are considered essentiat in terms of '
successfully realising the assets subject to the Fund’s securities. J

2. Realisation of Assets

The realisation of the Fund's assets continues to progress.

As advised in previous reports, this is a public document and therefore to ensure | do not !
prejudice any ongoing negotiations regarding the sale of the properties, | will not at this time
identify individual properties and/or their expected realisable values. However, | summarise
sales completed, contracts on foot, current offers accepted and contracts awaiting execution

below:

Sates completed 14,180,806

Thirteen contracts on fogt 10,833,946

Two offers accepted, awaiting executed 2,170,600
contract/deed of assignment

With respect to the information above, | note the following:

s Flve contracts are unconditional with settlement scheduled in November 2012 and gross
realisations of $3.76¢ millfon;

s five contracts are unconditional with settlements scheduled in December 2012 and gross
realfsations of approximately $4.04 miltion;

v One contract is unconditional with settlement scheduled in March 2013 and gross
reatisations of §1.6 million;
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v A deed of settlement has been executed with $150,000 received on 18 June 2012 and
$1.1 mitlion to be received on 17 June 2013;

¢ One contract is unconditional with settlement scheduled in August 2013 and gross
realisations of $320,000;

= A contract is currently being exchanged with oross realisations of approximately
$400,000 anticipated. The agent for the site is continuing to market the remaining lot;

« Documentation fs currently being prepared for the transfer of a security interest over a
property in exchange for $1.77 million;

The remaining 8 properties, with the exception of two properties, are currently on the market
with one being prepared for the commencement of a sale campaign and the other subject to

possession proceedings.

! will continue to update investors on the progress of the sales in my monthly reports to
investors.

3. Legal Proceedings
There are currently numerous legal actions on foot including:

Possession proceedings are underway with respect to a secured property as noted in
section 2 of this report;

- Two daims have been filed against the same valuer for neglipence and damages in
excess of $10 million. Expert witnesses have been engaged to progress the claims. Any
amount recoverable witt be sought against a professional indemnity insurance policy;

A deed of settlement has been executed with respect to a claim against a guarantor,
Filing for default judgment against the remaining guarantors s ynder consideration;

Monetary judgement has been obtained against a guarantor, however a cross claim has
been filed by the borrower with a hearing dats scheduled for later in the year:

Several proceedings are ongoing against a bankrupt/related parties to realise his interest
ina property. This is likely to result in a substantial recovery for the fund;

Collection of & judgement debt has been finalised with a final payment of $250,000
received;
An assessment of & costs order obtained against a borrower is ongoing; and

- Other claims are still being considered against borrowers/guarantors to determine if
commercial recoveries are achievable.
The actions are expected to realise several million dollars for the benefit of investors although
this may take some time to realise.
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4. Estimated Return to Investors

I provide below an estimated return to investors of between 15 and 22 cents in the dollar as at 4
November 2012 as follows;
——— s

Total estimated selling prices 44,471 58,581
Less: Selling costs - marketing dnd agents fees {3.5%) {1,558} {2,050
Seclired creditors (net of cash at bank) and including bank guarantees {1,195} {1,199)
Other loan (3,000 {3,000)
Land Tax and Rates {8,377} (8,377
Other unsecured creditors {268} (268)
Recetvers feas {939 (939}
Estimated net amount available to tnvestors as at 4 November 2012 29,136 42,752
Total investors unfts 193,916 193,916
Estimated return in the dollar $0.15 $0.22

The above table does not take into account future aperating costs, interest on bank loans until
repaid in full, future Receivers fees and rates and land tax. It also excludes any {egal recoveries
against borrowers, valuers or other third parties.

Subject te the sale of the properties currently on the market and where sale campaigns are to
commence and particularly depending on the sale of the two largest properties, | am hopeful
that | will be able to commence interim distributions to investors in the first six months of next
year. This will be after paying secured creditors, land tax and rates, Receivers fees and the
unsecured creditors who rank ahead of investors’ interests,

5. Court Application for Remuneration

As advised in my prior updates to investors, an application to the Court for the approval of my
remuneration was filed an 21 September 2017,

The application was heard on 25 October 2012 with the Court approving my remuneration for the
period from 21 November 2011 to 31 August 2012 in the amount of '$837,103.85 {inclusive of
GST}, 2 reduction of §3,896.75 (inclusive of GST) of the tatal amount claimed, This reduction
foliowed a submission by counsel on behalf of Equititrust Ltd {In Liquidation}{Receivers &
Managers Appointed)(“Equititrust”) in relation to their view that the time | spent consulting with

4
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my tawyers and reviewing my affidavit to support ASIC’s intended winding up application against
Equititrust, fell cutside the terms of my appointment,

This accurred in February 2012 at a time when the winding up of the Fund was being hampered
by the tack of cooperation of the directars who were {rying to pursue an alternative strategy,
The lack of cooperation was causing an increase in my costs and therefore in ry view it was
beneficial to investors for Equititrust to be wound up with a view to improving ongoing
cooperation of the Responsible Entity in the winding up of the Fund.

A copy of the Court Order approving my remuneration is attached for your information,.

Fwill continue to advise investors of all future applications with respect to seeking approval of
my remuneration.

6. Piper Alderman Class Action

i have been advised that Piper Alderman is continuing to progress the claims available to Unit
Holders in refation to the Fund’s demise. Unit holders wishing to be part of the anticipated
action should contact Shaan Palmer of Piper Alderman on {02} 9253 9920.

7. Receiver's Remuneration & Expenses

I attach a remuneration summary covering the period from 1 September 2012 to 4 November
2012 in respect of fees incurred of $179,153.00 plus outtays of $14,092.64 plus GST. None of the
fees have been drawn to date.

As noted above, on 25 October 2012, the Court approved my remuneration for the period 22
November 2011 to 31 August 2012 in the amount of $837,103.85 (inclusive of G5T}. These fees
are expected 1o be pald later this month and after the secured creditors loan is paid in full, A
bank guarantee faciiity of 31.1# will remain in place with a view to arranging the release of the
guarantees in due course or alternatively paying them out.

8. Updating your contact details

If investors wish to update their postal address or bank details, a request should be submitted in
writing to the following address.

fquititrust lacome Fund (Receiver appointed)
/- BBC

GPO Box 457

Brishane QLD 4001

. Queries

Monthly reports will continue to be uploaded to the websites www. equititrust.com.au and
weww enuititrustincomefund. com. au.

The remaining staff and consultants engaged by me ta assist in the winding up of the fund are
located at the following address:

870



Postal Address: Equititrast Income Fund Phone: 07 5510 4870
Wyndham Building Fax:  G7 5510 4907
Level 9, 1 Corporate Court
BUNDALL QLD 4217

Andrew Want of this office is, however, the key point of contact for all fnvestor gueries,
Andrew can be contacted by the foliowing;

Phone: 07 3237 5999
Email: andrew.want@equititrustincomefund.com.ay

Should Investors have any queries in relation to the winding up of the Fund, they should contact
my office on {07) 3237 5999 or by email at info@bdo.com.au.

Yours faithfully,

-

< David Whyte
Receiver

\(\
jf /
j
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E‘z @@}é) - SUPREME COURT OF QUEENSLAND
b REGISTRY: BRISBANE

S ) t\" -\J
\‘;}) 3@ NUMBER: BS 10478 OF 2011

IN THE MATTER OF EQUITITRUST LIMITED (RECEIVERS AND MANAGERS
APPOINTED (IN LIQUIDATION) ACN 061 383 044

Applicant; EQUITITRUST LIMITED (RECEIVERS AND MANAGERS
APPOINTED (IN LIQUIDATION) ACN (61 383 944
AND

Respondents: THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUSYT INCOME FUND ARSN 059

079 854 AND THE MEMBERS OF THE EQUITITRUST PRIORITY
CLASS INCOME FUND ARSN 089 675 729

ORDER
Before: The Honourable Justice Mullins
Date. 25 October 2012

Initiating Document: Application filed 21 September 2012
THE ORDER OF THE COURT IS THAT:

1. Pursuant to subparagraph 3{d) of the Order of the Honcurable Justice Applegarth made on 21
November 2011 and subparagraphs 3(c) and 6(c) of the Order of the Honourable Justice
Applegarth made on 23 November 201 1, the remunevation of David Whyse, for the period 22
November 2011 to 31 August 2012, be {ixed i the amount of $837,103.85 (inclusive of GSTY;

angd

2, The costs of and incidental to the appiication filed on 21 September 2012 be costs in the

winding vp and the receivership of the Equititrust Income Fund, to be paid out of the assets of

the Eguititrust Inceme Fund.

Signed C”%\';S"M

BIERUTY pEaISTRAR

v GADENS LAWYERS
fed on \bf&_l} 1{ of the court appointed recelver Level 11, 111 Eagle Street
{1661 BRISBANE QLD 4060
Tel No.. 073231 1666
Fax No: 07 3229 5850

SZCJSK 20120478 ]
BMEDQCS Crder of Justice Mulling dited 25 October 2012
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Level 18, 300 Queen 5t
Brisbane QLD AQ0C

GPG Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001
AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 7 3237 5999
Fax:+61 7 3221 9227
www, bdo.com.au

TO INVESTORS

4 January 2013

EQUITITRUST INCOME FURD ARSH 089 079 854
(RECEIVER APPOINTED) (“the Fund” or "“EIF")

i refer to my previous reporits and now provide my tenth update to investors since my
appointment as Court appointed Receiver and person responsible for winding up the EIF on 21
November 2011,

With it being in excess of one vear since my appointment, this report surmmarises the actions
taken to date and remaining issues to be dealt with to finalise the winding up. My last report to
investors was on 9 November 2012, A December 2012 report was delayed due to significant work
befng undertaken to dispose of a major asset in South Australia {commented upen further below)
and the Christmas break.

1. Property Realisations

There have been 32 properties sold since my appointment with total gross realisations of
approximately $19.6 mitlion and contracts accepted for six properties totalling approximately
$7.3 million to date as detailed in the tables below:

1.1 Loan Book Realisations
Loan Number Loan Secarlty Tocation Contract Safe Price
{Borrower} (Excl, GST where
applicable)
Lecurities sotd/refinanced o
105648 Mounthell ipswich, QLD 54%,500
1(5653 Tweed Centrat Murwillumbah, NSW 6,227,285 :
{22 tots)
1045667 Resort Corp Admin Kingscliff, Nsw 885,060
105680 Morevale Land Glenella, QLD 2,250,000 i
0577 Checking Rfchmond, HGW 7,766,000 |
105746 Viestern Lang Corporation Redbank Plains QLD §25,600 ’
103652 Kristine Mewton Lennox Heads 2,730,000
105482 CGamp Developments Pty Ltd | Bowen, QLI 500,000
105622 National Resorts Bowen, QLD 1,772,295
105004 Taylor AG & SK {refirance) Birkdale QLD 207,584
105264 East Coask Pty Led Yamba, NSW 1,504,000
$19,662,664

There was a significant amount of rates and land tax outstanding on the above properties,
was required to be discharged at settlement,

B00 Busirmss Recovery & insotvency (QLD) Pry Lt ABN 90 134 136 507 s 2 member of 3 naticnal assaciation of independent entities which are ali member:

of B0 {Australia) Lid ABN 77 050 110 275, as Austratian compary Wnited by guarantes. DO Business Recovery & Insolvency (QLD] Pty Ltd and BDO
hustralia) Lbd are members of BOO International Lid, 3 UK company Umited by gearantee, and form part of the intervationat BDO network of independent

membes frms. Labitity dimfted by a scheme approved Under Professional Standards Legislation {other than far the acts or orfssions of Hnancial services

{icensees} in each Stake or Territory ather than Tasmania.

which
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1.2 Properties Under Contract/Subject to Deed of Settlement

As this is a public document, to ensure | do not preiudice completion of the contracts, 1 will not

at this time identify the individual contract values.

Loan Number Loah Security location Setttemant Data
(Borrowsr)

105735 Valencia Grove Griffith, NSW To be confirmed
109549 Corymbia Estates Carbrook QLD 30 January 2013
105657 Rosea Pty Ltd Worgawailen, QLD 17 June 2013
105696 Morvale Lang Port Augusta, SA 31 March 2013
10574 Kele Property Group Porl; Macquarie, NSW 7 January 2013
105653 Tweed Central Murwillumbah, Nsw | £ August 2013

1.3 Properties Remaining to be Sold

A summary of the eight remaining properties to be realised along with the key outstanding issues
te be resolved with respect to each property is provided below. Again, as this is & public
document and to ensure | do not prejudice any ongoing negotiations regarding the sale of the
properties, | will not at this time identify their expected realisable values.

(i} Wirrina Cove
Wirrina Corporation Pty Lid and the EIF are the mortgagees in possession of the Wirrina

Cove assets which comprise a resort, golf course, conference centre, caravan park,
marina, residential land and rural land.

The resort and surrounding assets have been under the control of the mortgagees since
at least 2010,

There was an unsuccessful marketing campaign conducted in September 2011 with the
assets having been on the market since that time with no reasonable offers received.

in order to achieve a better outcome for investors it was decided to “break up” the

assets and offer the individual components for sale and after resolving the following

issues:

- Removal of caveats registered on titles in order to effect a sale of tand:- an
application to the Supreme Court of South Australia has been made and an Order
obtained directing the removal of the caveats. There are still caveats registered on
the titles of the marina berth under leases, which are in the process of being
removed.

- Recovery of outstanding water and sewerage levies from the condominium body
corporate and establishing an agreement going forward:- the condomifiums
{privately owned) had not paid water and sewerage levies since at least 2008. An
agreement has been entered into with the condominium body comorate with respect
to the outstanding levies and ongoing billings.

- Recovery of outstanding fevies/re-entry of delinquent under leases with respect to
marina berths.

- Applying for a new Section 23 Autherisation pursuant to the Aboriginal Heritage Act
1988:- the residential land at Wirrina Cove includes 32 allotments on the ocean

2
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front, 21 of which are located on an Aboriginal Site. A Section 23 Authorisation had
previously been granted in relation to the relevant allotments to allow a developer
to build on the land, however the authorisation did not extend to third parties who
acquired the land. As it was not possible to sell the land with the existing
authorisation, this authorisation has been revoked and a new authorisation has been
applied for, which is anticipated to be granted early in 2013.

- Transfer of water and sewerage operations to a third party supplier:- the mortgagee
of the land, Wirrina Corporation Pty Ltd {a whotly owned subsidiary of EIF), currently
provides water and sewerage services to land owners at Wirrina Cove. Under the
Water Industry Act 2012 (SA}, the water industry regulator, Essential Services
Commission of SA, requires suppliers of water and sewerage services to be Heensed
from 1 January 2013. An exemption from a licence has been approved until 30 June
2013 and pending the transfer of the water and sewerage operations to a third party
supplier,

Ray White have been engaged to sell the assets at Wirrina Cove and an expressions of
interest campaign closed in this respect on 19 December 2011,

Details of the sale are located at hitp://wirripacove . raywhite, com.

The following assets are available for sale either individually or in one line:
« Resort, golf course and conference centre;
« Caravan park;
¢ Marina head lease;
o Approximately 100 marina berth sub teases;
s 75 residential lots; and
+ 6 undeveloped lots ranging fromZ to 237 hectares in area,

The sate campaign was extensive and resulted in approximately 500 enquiries with 134
expressions of interest received.

At the time of writing this report, the acceptable expressions of interest received are
being converted to contracts of sale.

Toowoomba Foundry

The property comprises a 90,290 square metre site situated within the City of
Teowoomba QLD, which includes a closed down foundry, offices and warehouses.

An ‘Offers to Purchase’ campalgn conducted by Ray White an behalf of the liquidators of
the owner of the site closed on 6 December 2012, The marketing agent is currently
finalising negatiations with those parties that subrnitted offers with a view to executing
rontracts of sale in the next couple of weeks.,

{ii1) Collingwood Park

The property is an englobo residential development site approximately 77 hectares in
size situated in the suburb of Coliingwood Park, GLD.

A highly conditional offer for the property was received in May 2012, however following
legal advice, the offer was not accepted and a new marketing campaign was undertaken
in September and October 2012, Offers have been raceived for the property, however at

3
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this stage are not at a level that is acceptable to the Receiver, Discussions are ongoing
in this respect,

{iv) Maclean

{v

—

The property is a residential development site approximately 14 hectares in size situated
in the town of Maciean, NSW.

The property was passed in at auction on 5 December 2012, The market feedback
leading up to, and following the auction expressed some concerns about development
costs due to the property being flood prone and having to bring fill onto the site.
Discussions are ongoing with interested parties who have been advised that in
accordance with the current approvals, no fill is required to be brought onto the site,

The existing development approval is currently being extended and a feasibility study
conducted to determine a residual land value,

Cornwallis and Richwond

The properties inctude a twf farm and development site in Cornwallis, NSW and
Richmond, NSW respectively. Both properties are in the control of 2 Receiver and
Manager,

A tender campaign has been undertaken by the Receiver with no offers accepted to
date. The third related property was sold by the Receiver and Manager.

(v} Murwitlumbah

There is one remaining {ot {23 lots have been sold/under contract to date) of vacant
industrial {and at Murwillumbah, NSW. An offer has been accepted for this final lot and
a contract of sale s being finatised with an expected settlement date of 21 January

2013,

{vii)Gold Coast

The property consists of a residential house and land and is currently subject to
possession proceedings, which is to be heard at the end of January 2013,

1.4 Legal Proceedings

There are currently several legal actions on foot. | am unable to provide specific details with
respect to each rnatter and the expected outcome of same, However, | provide an overview

below:

Possession proceedings are underway with respect to a secured property with the matter
to bae heard at the end of January 2013;

Two claims have been filed against the same valuer for negligence and damages in
excess of $10 million. Expert witnesses are currently preparing reports to progress the
claims. Any amount recoverable will be sought against a professional indempity
insurance policy;

A deed of settlernent has been executed with respect to a claim against a guarantor,
Fiting for default judgment against the remaining guarantors is underway;

Monetary judgement has been obtained against & guarantor, however a cross claim has
heen filed by the borrower. The matter is tikely to go to trial in early 2013;
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Several proceedings are ongoing against a bankrupt /related parties to realise his interest
ina property. This is likely to result in a substantial recovery for the Fund; and

Other claims are still being considered against borrowers/guarantors/valuers to
determine if commercial recoveries are achievable.,

The actions are expected to realise several miilion dollars for the benefit of fnvestors, although
this may take some time to realise.

1.5 Overhead Expenses/Services Agreement

Upon my appointment, it was determined that costs being incurred by Equititrust Limited
{Receivers and Managers Appointed) (in Liquidation) {(“EL"} as Responsible Entity {“RE”} for the
EIF was approximately $500,000 per manth, which in my view was extremely high in relation to
the management of 29 loans and for the winding up of the EIF.

My ability to control overheads was limited because staff and consultants were not engaged
directly by EL as RE of the EIF but were engaged by a separate company, ECG Administration Pty
Ltd (ECGA) on behalf of the RE, Administrators were appointed to ECGA on 15 February 2012,

In order to reduce and o obiain greater control of overhead costs associated with the
employment of staff and consultanits and the provision of plant and equipment, | negotiated a
services agreement. The services agreement provided that an entity would provide certain
services to EL to enable it to carry on the business of the RE for the purposes of the winding
down of the Fund, such as day-to-day management, accounting and taxation reporting,
information technology services, corporate administration services as well as the provision of
staff and consultants and the use of the business premises from which EL operated. As a result of
the implementation of the services agreement, EL's operating costs were reduced to
approximately $147,000 per month. Under the terms of the services agreament, the intention
had been for the staff and consultants to be trapsferred to the new service provider, however
this had not been cempleted at the time of the administrators’ appointment to FCGA. As a
restidt, the staff and consultants were terminated by the administrators on 16 Mareh 2012 and |
employed 7 former staff/consultants direct as receiver of the £IF,

Following ongoing reductions of staff/consultants and the premises move, and prior to
termination of the services agreement, the monthly overhead costs had been reduced to
between $65K and $70K per month. This monthly overhead cost has reduced as the number of
staff /consultants decreased as the loan book was realised,

From 21 December 2012, there will be one remaining staff member assisting plus an IT
consultant with the winding up of the Fund, which will reduce overheads further to
approximately $21,000 per month, It {5 anticipated that the remaining staff member will finish
up by the end of March 2013 resulting in the closure of the Bundall office and a reduction of
overhead costs to approximately $7,200 a month, which will relate to maintenance of the IT

infrastructure,
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2. Creditor Claims
2.1 Secured Creditors

As at the date of my appoiatment, the debt due to secured creditors totalled approximately $9.5
miilion.  The secured creditors’ claims have now been discharged, with the exception of
approximately $1.1 mitlion in respect of bank guarantees issued by the National Australia Bank,

The bank guarantees support bonds hetd by various Councils with respect to certain development
sites. 1 am currently investigating the action required for the bonds to be released by the
respective Councils.,

2.2 Other Creditors
Other creditors that must be paid in priority to investors include:
Rates and land tax against certain properties to be realised;

Trade creditors, which relate ta tabilities necessarily incurred in the winding up of the
Fund;

Any other creditors ouistanding at the date of my appointment; and

Receiver’s remuneration and outlays.

There is a matter to be resolved with respect to an amount advanced by the Mclvor
Superannuation Fund to the EIF for approximately $2.46m. The amount was advanced in or
around February 2011 pursuant to a loan agreement, which provides for an interest charge of
15% per annum. The current balance of the loan is approximately $3.3 million. Should it be
substantiated that the Mciver Superannuation Fund has a valid claim, this amount will rank in

priority te Investors,

2.3 Claims by the Liguidators of EL

The liquidators of EL, Hall Chadwick, have lodged an application for directions with the Court in
relation to the extent to which they are entitled to be indemnified out of FIF's assets for
remuneration and expenses incurred by them as Administrators totalling approximatety
$805,000. Their application is scheduled 1o be heard in February 2013, however as they failed
to meet the deadline to serve the application on me then the hearing is likely to be adjourned.
# have previously queried the basis of their claims and their right to claim against the EIF's assets
and bearing in mind:

« [was already appointed to wind up the EIF at the time of their appointment and was the

Receiver of the EIF's assets;

¢ The statements made by Richard Albarran at the first meeting of creditors where he
advised Investors of the EIF that his costs and expenses would not come out of the Fund:

s The Court Order of 29 February 2012 {which the Administrators consented to) and which
clarified the roles of the various insolvency practitioners in erder to save the duplication

of costs; and
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s Richard Albarran's confirmation at the second meeting of creditors that if Hall Chadwick
were appointed Liguidators of EL they woutd not seek reimbursement of any costs from

the EIF as Liguidators,

3. Piper Alderman Class Action

[ have been advised that Piper Alderman is continuing to progress the claims available to Unit
Holders in relation to the Fund’s demise, Unit holders wishing to be part of the anticipated
action should contact Shaan Palmer of Piper Atderman on (02) 9253 9920.

4. Receipts and Payments

Bk

| provide below a summary of the Receipts and Payments of the Fund for the period since my

appoirdment on 21 November 2011 to 31 December 2012,

Interest fncome
Loan Recoveries:

Checkting Pty t.td

1,709,820.00

Corymbia Corporation Pty Ltd 11,887.64
Corymbia Estates Pty Lid 84,316.62
East Coast Pty Ltd 1,731,129.80
Elysian Marketing Pty Ltd 412,821.57
Gamp Bevelopments Pty Ltd 481,996,9%

344,457.88

Hollyander
Kristing Newton
Marvale Land Pty Lid

2,6635,906.97
2,600,000.00

60,133.06

Mountbell Pty Ltd 641,481.75

Resort Corporation Australia (No 2) Pty Lid 823,645.90

Rosea Pty Ltd 415,416.62

National Resorts Corporatian 1,772,265.45

Taylor, AG & SK | 215,438.34

Toovwoormba (Foundry Shopping Centre) Piy Ltd 735,297.49

Tweed Central Pty Ltd 6,269,332.23

Valencia Grove Pty Ltd 16,204.63

Western Land Corporation 1,019,968.62 21,351,418.50
Petty Cash on hand 69.10
Other tacome:

Pre-appointment ATO lodgements 6%,453.00

Fees earned from Helease of Mortgage 550.00 70,003.00

7
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Refunds received
Transfer from Pre-appointment accounts
Total Receipts

Bank Charges
Consuitant fees
Distressed Loan funding:
Boothers Pty Lid
Checkling Pty Ltd
Corymbia Corporation Pty Ltd
Corymbia Estates Pty Lid
CTP Pty Ltd
East Coast Pty Ltd
Gamp Developments Pty Ltd
Glenrowan Land Pty Ltd
Gonfanon Pty Ltd
Kele Property Group {Port
Morvale Land Pty Ltd
Maounthell Pty Ltd
Newton, Kristine Lorraine
Resort Corporation Australia (No 2) Pty Ltd
Toowoomba (Foundry Shopping Centre} Py Lid
Tweed Central Pty Ltd
Valencia Grove Pty Ltd
Western Land Corporation
wWindsor Turf Pty Ltd
Wirrina Cove
Office Establishment expenses
Document Production
GST Paid
Insurance
IT expenses
Legal Fees
Office Rental charge
PAYG Paid
Receivers Fees (Court approved)
Remuneration
Cutlays
Reimbursement of Expenses - Eguititrust Limited
Pre-appointment {prior to 21 November 2G11)

350.50
1,263,719.13
72,745,703.29

' 53,246.72

897.00
41,358.40
230,638.19
462,878.83
66,708.25
21,571.00
391,432.40
108,558.74
4,215.00
10,678.62
47,865.58
55,735.66
180,436.78
4,546.18
117,136.25
1,108,786.85
867,026.10
150,309.13
265,312.72
166,503.72

247,631,320 6,414,329.72

14,909.51

6,763.86

322,921.00

28,212.73

97,073.83

931,923.44

74,986.01

76,803.00
837,103.85

20,409.09 % 857,512.94

653,867.63
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Post-appointment (subsequent to 21 November 2011)
Secured Creditor Fees and Charges (Biil Facility)
Secured Creditor distribution
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
National Australia Bank
Statutory Fees
Superannuation Paid
Telephone, Fax & Intermnet

Wages & associated reimbursements
Total Payments

Closing Cash at Bank

305,682.62

54,409.25
8,400,000,00

959,550.25
600,527.80

8,454,409.25
1,199.00
22,270.21
2,494.80
279,559.08
19,199,590,15

3,546,113.14

I note that the ‘Distressed Loan Funding’ relates to marketing costs, agents’ fees, consultants’
fees, legal fees and rates and land tax. The incurring of these costs are considered essential in
terms of successfulty realising the assets subject to the Fund's securities.

Toowoomba (Foundry Shopping Centre) Pty Ltd includes rates cof approximately $95%5,000,
insurance of approximately $6%,000 and marketing casts of approximately $40,000.

Wirrina Cove includes ongoing trading expenses of approximately $984,000, marketing expenses

of approximately $367,000, insurance of approximately £229,000,

legal expenses of

approximately $180,000 and Pay as You Go withholding tax of approximately $285,000,

%. Estimated Return to Investors

| provide below an estimated return to Investors of between 11 and 1% cents in the dollar as at

31 December 2012 as follows:

s ” - S uprs ey

‘Totaf estimated se[iing prices 32,145 49,205
Less: Selting costs - marketing and agents fees {3.5%) {1,125) 1,722)
Barik Guarantees (net of cash at bank} 2,446 1,446
Other loan (3,300} {3,300}
Land Tax and Rates {8,211} 8,211)
Other unsecured creditors (587) {587)

(372} (372)

Recaivers fees



Estimated net amount available to Investors as at 31 December 2012 20,996 37,459

Total investor units 193,916 193,916

Estimated return in the dollar 50,11 50.19

The estimated return in the dollar has reduced from between 15 and 27 cents in the dollar as
provided in my 97 report to Investors dated 9 November 2012 to between 11 and 19 cents in the
doilar primarity due to a revision of the estimated values of certain property securities (based on
offers received heing less than the professfonal valuations held) and the accrual of outstanding

rates and land tax.

The above table does not take into account future operating costs, interest on the other loan,
future Receivers fees and rates and land tax. i also excludes any legal recoveries against
borrowers, valuers or other third parties.

Subject to the sale of the properties currently on the market and where sale campaigns are to
commence and particularly depending on the sale of the two largest properties, | am hopeful
that [ will be able to commence interim distributions to Investors before 30 June 2013, This will
be after paying secured creditors, land tax and rates, Receivers fees and the unsecured creditors

who rank ahead of Investors’ interests,

6. Receiver’s Remuneration and Expenses

As advised in my prior updates to Investors, an application to the Court for the approval of my
remuneration was filed on 21 September 2017,

The application was heard on 25 Qctober 2012 with the Court approving my remuneration for the
period from 21 Wovember 2011 to 31 August 2012 In the amount of $837,103.85 (inclusive of
GST). My fees for this perfod have now been paid.

{ anticipate that my next application for approval of my remuneration will be In January 2013, |
will continue to advise investors of all future apptications with respect to seeking approval of my
remineration.

| attach a summary of my current remuneration and outlays outstanding for the period 1
September 2012 to 31 December 2012, My remuneration incurred during this period totals
$372,478 plus outlays of $22,773 plus GST.

7. Finalisation
The finalisation of the winding up of the Fund wiil include the following:

{i) Realise the remaining assets of the Fund noted in section 1.2 and 1.3 of this report,
which | anticipate will be completed this year;

(if)y Finalise the remaining legal proceedings and other claims where commercial recoveries
are considered achievable. The time frames to finalise these matters will primarily be

determined by the Courts;
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{itt) Pay outstanding creditor claims that have a priority over Investors;

(iv) Distribute surplus proceeds to Investors in proportion to the number of units of which
they are the registered holder. As noted in section 6 of this report, | anticipate that an
interim distribution will be made to investors by 30 June 2013. A final distribution to
Investors will be made once all assets have been realised; and

{v} Once the winding up is complete, a registered company auditor will be engaged teo audit
the final accounts of the Fund. A copy of the report prepared by the auditor witl be sent
to Investors within 30 days after the report is received from the auditor,

8. Updating your contact details

If Investors wish to update their postal address or bank details, a request should be submitted in
writing to the following address.

Equititrust Income Fund {Receiver appointed)
C/- BDO

GPQO Box 457

Brisbane QLD 4001

9, Queries

Monthly reports will continue to be uploaded to the websites www. equititrust.com.au and
www. equititrustincomefund,com. au.

The remaining staff engaged by me to assist in the winding up of the Fund are located at the
following address:
Postal Address: Equititrust Income Fund Phone: 07 5510 4870

Wyndham Building Fax: 07 %510 4907

Level 9, 1 Corporate Court

BUNDALL QLD 4217
Andrew Wart of this office is, however, the key point of contact for all investor queries,
Andrew can be contacted by the following;

Phore: Q7 3237 5999
Email: andrew.want@equititrustincomefund.com.au

Should Investors have any queries in relation to the winding up of the Fund, they should contact
my office on {07} 3237 5999 or by email at info@bdo.com.au,

Yours faithfully,

‘M\““ﬁ—«::-.n.‘..m = ‘:;@ R .
/ David Whyte
Receiver
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TO INVESTORS

28 February 2013

(P ~4- &

Tel: +61 7 3237 59499
Fax: +6'1 7 3221 9227
www,bdo.com.au

EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND ARSH 089 079 854
(RECEIVER APPOINTED) (“the Fund” ar “EtF”)

Level 18, 300 Quaen 5t
Brisbane QLD 4000

GPD Box 457 Brishane QLD 4001
AUSTRALIA

I refer to my previous reports and now provide my eleventh update to vestors since my
appointment as Court appointed Receiver and person responsible for winding up the EIF on 21

November 2011,

1. Property Realisations

There have been 34 properties sold since my appointment with total gross realisations of

approximately $20.9 mitlion as detailed in the table below:

1.1 Loan Book Realisations

Loan Number Loan Seclrity location Contract bale Price
(Borrower) - (Excl. GST where

. . . R applicable}
Securities soldirefinanced j o
105648 Mountbell Ipswich, QLD 545,506
105653 Tweed Central Murwitiimbah, NSW 6,612,285

(23 lois)
105667 Resort Corp Admin Kingsclifl, NSw 865,000
105680 Morevale Land Glenella, QLD 2,250,000
105717 Checkling Rictunend, NSW 2,100,004
105746 Western Lan¢ Corporation Redbank Plains QLD 975,000
105652 Kristine Newton {ennoy Heads 2,750,000
105482 Gamp Developments Pty Y] Bowen, QLD 506,000
105622 National Resorts Bowen, QLD 1,772,295
105004 Taylor AG & SK {ref nance} Birkdale QLD 247,584
105264 East Coast Pty Ltg Yarmia, NSW 1,500,000
105721 Kele Broperty Group Bort Macquarie, NoW §80,000
70,527, 164

There has been a significant amount of rates and land {ax outstanding on the above properties,
which was required to be discharged at settlement.

B00 Businew Recovery B nsalveacy (G103 Pty Ltd ABN 90 134 036 507 fs.a member of a national assnciation of independent ontities which are all memberg
of BOU {austraiia) L14 ABN 77 050 110 275, an Austrabian comspany lmited By guarantee. BO0 Busitess Recovery & Insoivency {QLG} Py Lid-and 8D0
{Australin) LLd are members of BOO International Lie, » UK company Umived by searantee, and form part of the mitefnational B0 retwork of independant
member firms. Lisbility lmfted by 2 scheme approved under Professional Standards Leplslation: {other thon for the acts or amissions of Rnancial services

{icentees) tn each State or Territany

othar than Taxmanda,
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1.2 Properties Under Contract/Subject to Deed of Settlement

As this is a public document and to ensure 1 do not prejudice completion of the contracts, | will

not at this time identify the individual contract values.

Lean Number Loan Security location Settlement Date
{Barrower}

105735 Valenciz Grove Griffith, NSW 20 March 2013
105549 Corymbia Estates Carbrook QLD 31 arch 2013
105657 Roses Pty Ltd Wongawallen, QLD 17 June 203
105696 Morvaie Land Port Augusta, SA 31 Mareh 2013
105653 Tweed Central Murwillumbah, NSy | 47 AUgUst 2013
105739 Sunset Cove Developments Wirrina Cove, 5A Various

The status of the contracis/accepted offers with respect to the Wirrina Cove property is
discussed further in section 1.3 of this report.

1.3 Properties Remaining to be Sold

A summary of the status of the six remaining properties to be realised is provided below, Again,
as this is a public documerit and to ensure | do not prejudice any ongaing negotiations regarding
the sale of the properties, | will not at this time identify their expected realisable values,

{i) Wirrina Cove

As advised in my tenth report to Investors, Ray White were engaged fo sell the assets at
Wirrina Cove. At the time of writing this report, a total of 105 offers have been
accepted and/or contracts exchanged totalling aporoximately $6.88 million with respect
to residential fand, rural land and marina berth under leases. A summary is provided

below.
Offers accepted/contracts Lots/marine berths
exchanged (number} remaining (number}
Marinz herths 43 58 |
Res{dential land 53 22
Rural land 2 o
Caravan Park . 1. 0
Total 1G5 80

Discussions are ongoing with parties interested in acquiring the Resort, Golf Course, and
Conference Centre.

There are still a number of issues that are currently being resolved in order to maximise
the realisable value of the assety including:

- Removal of caveats registered on titles in order to effect a sale of the land and/or
the registering of marina berth under leases.
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+ Recovery of outstanding levies/re-entry of delinquent under leases with respect to
marina berths,
Obtaining a new Section 23 Autherisation pursuant to the Aboriginal Heritage Act
1988 for 32 ailotments on the ocean front {Fsplanade lots), 21 of which are located
on an Aboriginal Site,
Transfer of water and sewerage operations to Yankalilla District Council are
currently in advanced stages of negotiations. Council agreed at its meeting on 21
February 2013 to take over the water and sewerage infrastructure. This transfer
needs to occur to effectuate setilement of the residential land contracts,

{ii) Toowoomba Foundry
The marketing agent is currently finalising negotiations with an interested party with a
contract offer expected within the next few days.

{iti} Cotlingwood Park
A contract of sale has been submitted to a party for consideration with negotiations
ongoing with other parties who have expressed an interest in the property.

(iv) Maclean
Negotiations are ongoing with interested parties with a contract offer expected within
the next few days.

{v} Cornwallis and Richmond

The Receiver will shortly commence a futher sale campaign for both properties,

{vi} Gold Coast

The property consists of a residential house and land and is subject to possession
proceedings, which are currently on foot. The proceedings were defended and are now
subject to me lodging & claim and statement of claim by 18 March 2013 with mediation

to take place by 7 June 2013.

1.4 lLegal Proceedings

As advised in my tenth report to tnvestors, there are several legal actions currently on foot, |
am unable to provide specific details with respect to each matter and the expected outcome of
same. However, | provide an overview belaw:

- As indicated above, possession proceedings are underway with respect to a secured
property. Mediation is to take place by 7 June 2013 after the claim is todged and
responded to;

Two claims have been filed against the same valuer for negligence and damages in

excess of $10 miltion. Expert witnesses are currently finalising reports to progress the
claims. Any amount recoverable will be sought against a professional indemnity

insurance policy;
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- A deed of settlement has been executed with respect to a claim against a guarantor,
Default judgment against the remaining guarantors has been obtained and letters of

demand have been served:

thonetary judgement has been obtained against a guarantor, hawever a cross claim has
been filed by the borrower. The matter is likely to go to trial in early/mid 2013 once
evidence has been considered;

Several proceedings are ongoing against a barkrupt/related parties to realise an interest
in the surpius proceeds from the sale of a property, This is likely to result in a
substantial recovery for the Fund; and

Other claims are still being considered against borrowers/guarantors/valuers to
determine if commercial recoveries are achievabte,

Given the nature of these matters, they are likely to take some time to resoive. However, it is
expected that the actions will reatise several million dollars for the benefit of Investors.

2. Creditor Claims
2.1 Secured Creditors

As advised in my tenth report to investors, secured creditors’ claims have been discharged, with
the exception of approximately $1.1 million in respect of bank guarantees issued by the Hational

Australia Bank.

The bank guarantees support bonds held by various Councils with respect to certain development
sites. Discussions are taking place with the councils to determine when the guarantees may be

released.

2.2 Other Creditors

As advised in my tenth report Lo investors, there are a number of creditors that must be paid in
priority to Investors, which include:

- Rates and land tax against certain properties to be realised;

- Trade creditors, which relate to liabilities necessarily incurred in the winding up of the
Fund;
Any other creditors outstanding at the date of my appointment; and
Receiver’s remuneration and cutlays.

tam still investigating the amount advanced by the Mclvor Superannuation Fund to the EIF, the
current balance of which is approximately $3.3 million, Shouid it be substantiated that the
Mclvor Superannuation Fund has a valid claim, this amount will rank in priority to lnvestors.

2.3 Claims by the Liguidators of EL

As advised in my tenth report to Investors, the liquidators of FL, Hall Chadwick, lodged an
application for directions with the Court in relation to the extent to which they are entitied to

4
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he indemnified out of Eif's assets for remuneraticn and expenses incurred by them as
Administrators totatling approximately 5805,000.

Hall Chadwick has not filed the application for directions as previously foreshadowed and the
Court has now adjourned the hearing to a date to be fixed. 1t is therefore unclear if this will

proceed.

3. Piper Alderman Class Action
Piper Alderman has provided the following update:

“Llass Action
Piper Alderman has completed their preliminary investigations and have finalised the

principal claims to be brought against various parties for the benefit of unit holders in
relation to the losses sustained to the Equititrust Income Fund {the Fund). Prior to the
commencement of the claims (and with a view to obtaining further information and
documentation relevant to the prosecution of the claims), Piper Alderman intend to
undertake public examinations, which involves ebtaining documentation through the
court process from parties nssociated with Equititrust Limited (ET} and the Fund and
examining retevant persons in court such as the former directors and auditors of
Eguititrust and the Fund. To this end, Piper Alderman is presently liaising with Hall
Chadwick (ET's liquidators with a view to collectively undertakirig examinations. Piper
Alderman has also taken action to ohtain the requisite authority from ASIC to undertake
examinations independently of Hall Chadwick in the event that the dealings with Hall
Chadwick do not eventuate in o colleborative approach, Further, if the examinations
do not eventuate in the short term, the claims may be instituted as presently

formulated.

Contact
Should you have any questions about the clofms, please contact William Notani (Tel) 02

9253 9921; (e-mail) wnolon@piperalderman. com.au™

4, Receipts and Payments

i provide below a summary of the Receipts and Payments of the Fund for the period 1 January
2013 to 31 January 2013.

3,546,113.14

Opening Cash at Bank

Interest Income 5,764.76
Loan Recoveries:
Kele Property Group (Port Macquarie) Pty Led 1,098,741.72
Morvale Land Pty Ltd 1,636.60
Roses Pty Lud 18,333.33
3
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Toowoomba {Foundry Shopping Centre) Pty Lid
Tweed Central Pty Ltd
Valencia Grove Pty Lid
Receipt of Monies held in Trust - Legal
Total Receipts

Bank Charges
Distressed Loan funding:
Boothers Pty Ltd
Checkling Pty Lid
Corymbia Corporation Pty Ltd
Cerymbia Estates Pty Lid
East Coast Pty Ltd
Kete Property Group (Port Macquarie) Pty Ltd
Morvate Land Pty Lid
National Resorts Corporation
Toawoomba (Foundry Shopping Centre} Pty Ltd
Tweed Central Pty Lid
Valencia Grove Pty Lid
Western Land Corporation
Wirrina Cove
GST Paid
Insurance
IT expenses
Legal Fees
Office Rental charge
PAYG Paid
Wages & associated reimbursements
Total Payments

Closing Cash at Bank

3,527.33
491,360.94
354,000.00 1,967,599.92
8,172.55
1,981,537.23

24.40
5,424.58
66.00
22,076.92
9,873.94
2,640.00
306,174.11
1,460,52
8,311.05
10,284.08
139,018.45
13,681.36
28,684.61

132,214.22 679,849.84

211,233.00

552,44

10,670.64

89,505.04

5,460.95

8,120.00

8,160.62

1.013,976,93

4,513,673.44

i note that the ‘Distressed Loan Funding’ relates to marketing costs, agents’ fees, consultants’
fees, legal fees and rates and land tax, The incurring of these costs are considered essential in
terms of successfully realising the assets subject to the Fund’s securifies.
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5. Estimated Return to Investors

| provide below an estimated return to Investors of between 11 and 17 cents in the dollar as at
31 January 2013 as follows:

Cash at Bank 4,513 4,513
Estimated selling prices 32,130 44,765
Less:
Bank guarantees {1,100} {1,100}
Selling costs {3.5% of sale price) (4,124} (1,567}
Other toan (3,300} {3,300)
Land tax & rates (8,272} {8,272)
Other unsecured creditors {1,300} {1,200}
Recelver's foes (532) (332)
Estimated net amount avaflable to {nvestors as at 31 Jan 2013 21,013 33,307
Tatal investor units 143,916 193,916
011 0.17

Estimated return in the dollar

The above table does not take into account future operating costs, interest on the other loan,
future Receivers fees and rates and land tax. It also excludes any legal recoveries against

borrowers, valuers or other third parties,

Subject to the sale of the properties currently on the mariet and where sale campaigns are to
commence and particularty depending on the sale of the twe largest properties, 1 anticipate
commencing interim distributions to investers shortly after 30 June 2013, The offer received for
one of the two largest properties and where a centract has been issued is anticipated to settle
on 28 June 013, The other large property in South Australia has a number of different
settlement dates, however the residential properties will lkely settle by 30 June 2013,

The distribution to investors will take place after paying secured creditors, land tax and rates,
Receivers fees and the unsecured creditors who rank ahead of investors’ interests.
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6. Updated Unit Price

t have received numerous requests to provide an updated unit price. In this regard, | provide
below an updated unit price as at 31 December 2012 of 16 cents, which is based on the mid-
point of the high and low estimated selling prices of the secured assets as at 31 December 2047,

| Total Vatue of Fund Assets as at 31 December 2012 (net of land tax and 38,099
rates}
Less value of NAB facility {1,100}
36,999
Less Creditors and Other Payables %,37%)
Total Net Value of Fund Assets 30,624
Tota! Nurmber of Linits as at 31 December 2012 193,916
Unit Price 018

Please note that the unit price has been calculated based on unaudited management accounts as
at 31 December 2012.

I attach a copy of a letter to Centrelink confirming the unit price as at 31 December 2012, which
may be used by Investors to assist with the revision of their pensions.

I have previously written to the Minister for Families, Housing, Community Services and
Indigenaus Affairs seeking consideration to exempt units in the Fund from social security
deeming provisions te assist retirees who are income and asset tested, However, the Minfster
has advised that an exemplion from the deeming rules are only provided in very limited
circumstances and only when specific characteristics are met, including the investment ceasing
to operate within the terms of the Product Disclosure Statement (PDS). The Minfster considers
that the freezing of distributions and the risks associated with this praduct is allowed for in the
PD5 and the constitution of the Fund and therefore an exemption will not be granted in this

instance,

/. Receiver’'s Remuneration and Expenses

battach & summary of my current remuneration and outlays outstanding for the period 1
september 2012 te 31 January 2013. My remuneration incwrred during this period totals
$504,571.00 plus outlays of $27,868.52 plus GST.

| anticipate that my next application for approval of my remuneration will be in March 2013, |
will continue to advise investors of all future applications with respect to seeking approval of my

remuneration.
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8. Updating your contact details

If Investors wish to update their postal address or bank details, a request should be submitted in
writing to the following address.

Equititrust Income Fund {Receiver appointed)
/- BDO

GPO Box 457

Brisbane QLD 4001

9. Queries

Monthly reports will continue to be uploaded to the websites www.eauititrust,.com.au and
www, equititrustincamefund, com. au.

The remaining staff engaged by me to assist in the winding up of the Fund are located at the
following address;

Postal Address: Equititrust Income Fund Phone: 07 5510 4870
Wyndham Building Fax: Q7 85104907
Level 9, 1 Corporate Court
BUNDALL QLD 4217

Andrew Want of this office is, however, the key point of contact for all investor queries.
Andrew can be contacted by the following;

Phone: 07 3237 5999
Email: andrew,want@eguititrustincomefund.com.au

Should Investors have any queries in relation to the winding up of the Fund, they should contact
my office on (07) 3237 5999 or by email at infe@bdo.com. au.

Yours faithfully,

David Whyte
Receiver
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Tel: +61 7 3237 5999
Faw:+61 7 32219227
www,bdo.com.au

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

28 February 2013

EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND
ARSH 089 079 854
(RECEIVER APPOINTED) (“THE FUND™)

Level 18, 300 Gueen §t
Brisbane Q1. 4000 ]
GPO Box 457 Brisbane QLB 4001
AUSTRALIA

I refer to my court appointment on 21 November 2011 as interim Receiver and subsequent
appointment on 23 November 2011 as Receiver of the Fund’s assets and the person responsible
for ensuring the winding up of the Fund in accordance with the terms of its constitution.

I provide an update on the estimated unit price of the fund as at 31 December 2012, calculated

as follows:

Total Value of Fund Assers as at 31 December 2012 {net of land tax and
rates)

Less value of NASB facility

Less Creditors and Other Payables
Total Het Value of Fund Assets
Total Number of Units as at 37 December 2012

Unit Price

38,09%

{1,100}
36,999

(6,375}

30,624

193,916

0.16

Shoutd you have any queries fn respect of the above, please contact Andrew Want of my office

on (GF) 3237 5711,
Yours faithfully,

David Whyte
Receiver

800 Business Recovery & Insotvency {QLD] Piy Ltd ABN 90 134 036 307 {5 & memner of a national associstion of independent entitlas which are all members
of BDO (Australia) Lrd ABN 77 058 110 275, an Austratian company fmited by guzrantee. BDO Business Recavery & Insalvency {QLD) Pry Ltd and 8O
(Austratta) Lid are members of BDO taternationat Lid, a UK company limited by suarantes, and form part of the intarnatiorst BRO network of independent
member frms, Liability Gmited by a scheéme approved under Professional Standlards Leplslation {ather than for the acts of onissions of financiat servives

ticenszes) in gach State or Territory sther than Tasmania,
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P~ 471

Level 18, 300 Queen 5t

Teli +61 7 3237 5999
Brisbane QLD 4000

Fax: +61 7 3221 9127
www.bdo.com, au

AUSTRALIA

TO INVESTORS

18 Aprit 2013

EQUITITRUST INCOME FUND ARSN 089 079 854
(RECEIVER APPOINTED) (“the Fund™ or “EIF")

I refer to my previous reports and now provide my twelfth update to Investars since my
appointiment as Court appointed Receiver and person responsible for winding up the EIF on 21
November Z011. This report has been delayed by three weeks as | wanted to be in a position to
confirm that one of the substantial assets in the Find, being the Collingwood Park property, is
now subject to contract with this being executed on 10 April 2013.

in additiors, | am pleased to advise that the contract of sale to transfer the water and sewerage
infrastructure and services at Winina Cove to Yankalilla Council was executed yesterday with
settlement due on 31 May 2013. Completion of this sale will then trigger settlement of the 75
residential lots at Wirrina Cove as this was a condition of the sales, These items are further
discussed at Section 1 below.

1. Property Realisations

Provided below is a sumemary of the status of the remaining properties awaiting settlement or
still to be sold.

1.1 Properties Under Contract/Subject to Deed of Settlement

As this is a public document and o ensure | do not prejudice completion of the contracts, | will
not at this time identify the individual contract values,

GPG Box 457 Brishane GQLD 4001

toan Number Loan Security focation Settlement Date
{Borrower)

105735 Valencia Grove Griffith, NSW 22 April 2013
105549 Corymbia Estates Carbrogk QLD t4 #ay 2013
105657 Resea Pty Ltd Wongawallen, QLD T7 June 2013
105696 Morvale Land Port Augusta, SA 30 Aprit 2013
105653 Tweed Central Murwillumbah, NSW 29 August 2073
105665 Corymbia Corporation Coltingwood park, qup | 30 August 2013
105385 East Coast Maclean, NSW 13 June 2013
105739 Sunset Cove Developments | Wirrina Cove, 5A Various

Flease note that the settlement dates for the properties at Griffith, Carbrook and Port Augusta
have been extended since my eleventh report to investors, The extensions were granted at the
request of the purchaser with an extension fee and/or default interest applicable.

BOG Businesy Recavery & Insolvency (QUD) Pty Lid ABN 90 134 634 507 13 & meiber of a national association of independent entities which are all members
of $00 (Australia) Ltd ABN 77 050 110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BOO Businest Recovery & Insotvenicy {GLD) Fry Lid 2nd BOO

(Austriding Lid sre members of B00 International Lid, @ UK company limited by guaranice, and form part of the intérmnational BDO netwerk of indepeadant
member firms. LTabilty timited by & scheme spproved under Professional Standards Leelstation tether than for the acts or-omisslans of Financial services

ticensees) in wach State or Jerritary other than Tasmanta,
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All properties noted above are subject to unconditional contracts with the exception of the
fotlowing:

(i

(it}

Wirrina Cove
Ray White is continuing with the sale of the assets at Wirrina Cove. At the time of
writing this report, a total of 134 offers have been accepted and/or contracts exchanged
totalling approximately $7.87 million with respect to residential land, rural land and
marina berth under leases. A summary is pravided below.

Marina berths ‘ 43 42
Restdential land 68 . 7
Rural tand 2 Y
Caravan Park t ¢
Total 134 4%

Discussions are ongoing with interested parties in acquiring the Resort, Golf Course, and
Conference Gentre and | anticipate that a contract will be finatised in the coming weeks.
Following feedback from the sale campaign, an asking price of $3 miltion has been set
for this part of the Wirrina Cove assets.

The key issues that are/were required to be resolved to effect settlement of the above
mentioned contracts include:

Removal of caveats registered on titles and obtaining consent from & subsequent
mortgagee. After protracted negotiations, | anticipate that the withdrawal of
caveats will be completed in the next two weeks along with consent being granted
by the mortgagee,

Obtaining a new Section 23 Authorisation pursuant to the Aboriginal Heritage Act
1988 for 32 allotments on the ocean front (Esplanade lots), 21 of which are located
on an Aboriginal Site, This approval was received from the Minister’s office on 15
April 2013,

Transfer of the water and sewerage operations to Yankatila District Council. Under
the terms of the contract of sale, which was executed on 17 April 2013, the water
ang sewerage uperations will be transferred to Coundit by 31 May 2013.

Collingwood Park

A contract was executed on 10 April 2013, which is conditicnal upon the purchaser
obtaining approval from the fpswich City Council and the Australian Government
Department of Sustainability, Waler, Poputation and Communities to clear the
vegetation on the site. It is anticipated that the approvals will be obtained by 31 July
1013 with settlement scheduled 30 days thereafter. The contract does allow the
purchaser to extend the contract for up to 28 days up to a maximum of three times upon

2

898



payment of a non-refundable fee of $78,706.85 (for each extension) if the approvals
have not been cbtained.

1.2 Properties Remaining {o be Sold

A summary of the status of the three remaining properties to be realised is provided below,
Again, as this is a public document and to ensure | do not prejudice any ongoing negotiations
regarding the sale of the properties, | will not at this time identify their expected realisable

values.
{iy Toowoomba Foundry
Negotiations are ongoing with an interested party and ¢ am hopeful that a contract will

be finalised shortly. The site has various contamination and heritage {ssues, which has
resutted in protracted contract negotiations.

{ii) Cornwallis and Richmond

The Receiver has commenced a sale campaign with tenders closing on 23 April 2613,

{i#i) Gold Coast

The property consists of a residential house and land and is subject to possession
proceedings, which are currently on foot. | have filed a claim and statement of claim
and are currently awaiting for the defendant to fite a defence. [t is anticipated that
mediation will take place by 7 June 2013,
1.3 Legal Proceedings
As advised in my eleventh report to Investors, there are several legal actions currently on foot. |
am unable to provide specific details with respect to each matter and the expected cutcome of
same, Howaever, | pravide an overview below;
A¢ indicated above, possession proceedings are underway with respect to a secured
property. Mediation is to take place by 7 June 2013 after the claim is lodged and
responded to;
Two claims have been filed against the same valuer for negligence and damages in

excess of $10 miilion. Expert witnesses are currently finalising reports to progress the
claims. Any amount recoverable will be sought against a professional indemnity

insurance policy;
- A deed of settlement has been executed with respect to a claim against a guarantor.

Default judgment against the remaining guarantors has been obtained and letters of
demand have been served. | anticipate that a sequestration order will be obtained

bankrupting the guarantors;

Monetary judgement has been obtained against a guarantor, however a cross claim has
heen filed by the borrower, The matter is likely to go to trial in mid-2013 once evidence
has been considered;

Several proceedings are engoing against a bankrupt/related parties to realise an interest
in the surptus proceeds from the sale of a property. This is likely to result i a
substantial recovery for the Fund; and
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~  Other claims are still being considered against borrowers/guarantors/valuers to
determine if commercial recoveries are achievable.

Given the nature of these matters, they are likely to take same time to resolve, However, it is
expected that the actions will realise several miltion doltars for the benefit of Investors.

2. Creditor Claims

2.1 Secured Creditors

As advised in my eleventh report te Investors, secured creditors’ claims have been discharged,
with the exception of approximately $1.1 million in respect of bank guarantees issued by the
National Australia Bank.

The bank guarantees support bonds held by various Councils with respect to certain development
sites.  Discussfons are ongoing with the councils to determine when the guarantees may be
released.

2.2  Other Creditors

As sdvised in my eleventh repart to Investors, there are a number of creditors that must be paid
in priority to investors, which include:

Rates and land tax against certain properties to be realised;

Trade creditors, which relate to labilities necessarily incurred in the winding up of the
Fund;

Any other creditors outstanding at the date of my appointment; and

- Receiver’s remuneration and outlays,

[am stilt investigating the amount advanced by the Mclvor Superannuation Fund {"MSF"} to the
EIF, the current balance of which is approximately $3.3 million, In this regard, | was of the
understanding that the trustee of the MSF was MM Holdings Pty Ltd {Receivers and Managers
Appointed) (In Liquidation) ("MMH'}) and, therefore, if it could be determined that the debt was
due and payable then funds would be repaid to the Liguidators of MMH. However, | have since
been advised that the trustee of the MSF was purported to have been changed to MSM Family
Holdings Pty Ltd ("MSM’} on 20 September 2011. This is surprising because of representations
made by Mr Mark Mcivor/MMH seeking repayment of the loan after my appointment on 21
Nevember 2011, 1t should be noted that the directors of MSM are Mr Mark Mclvor and Mrs Stacey
Mclvor, The sole shareholder of MSM s Mr Mark Mclvor. My investigations are ongoing with
respect to this matter and | am currently obtaining tegal advice as to how to proceed with the
demand for repayment of the loan,

2.3 Claims by the Liguidators of EL

As advised in my eleventh report to Investors, the tquidators of EL, Hall Chadwick, lodged an
apptication for directions with the Court in refation to the extent to which they are entitled to
be indemnified out of EIF's assets for remuneration and expenses incurred by them as
Administrators totatling approximately 580%,000,

Hall Chadwick has still not fited the application for directions. [t is therefare unclear if this will
procesd,
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